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A Community Connection

Summary

The goal of the Lawrence Freenet project is to jpl@true wireless broadband to everyone,
everywhere, all of the time, free. The organizatiegan its journey toward this goal by
providing free access to low income families. Tine®e access is supported by charging a fee to
those who can afford the service. Using this faiag method, Freenet has been able to provide
broadband Internet services to hundreds of Lawressidents - free of charge.

With the launch of the “Lifeline”
service by the World Company, About Freenet

the Lawrence Freenet Project sees Lawrence Freenet, Inc. is part of the Freenet ptpge
a future where low income families partnership dedicated to the idea that digitalriméaion should

. . be available to everyone, everywhere, regardlegscome.
are provided service through an 4 y g

approach that combines the The Freenet project is composed of partnershipsdsst
generosity of existing broadband | municipal governments, non-profit organizations &eprofit
providers with services from service providers.

public interest groups like ours.

As a result, the Lawrence Freenef| Municipal Non-Profit For-Profit

Project can now begin to dedicate City of Lawrence | Lawrence Freenet, Inc.  Westar Byer

its resources to widening its free
service to other elements of the City of North Lawrence Housing Community Wireless
community. With the Freenet- Newton Authority Communications Co.

Kids initiative, Fr.eenet seeks to_ Additional information about Lawrence Freenet, lacd the
gxpand free service to eV?ry Ch"d Freenet project is presented in Section 8.
in the Lawrence community who i

under the age of 18.

It has always been the philosophy of Lawrence Faetirat municipal funds are best spent on
core city services such as utilities, traffic cohttaw enforcement, public transit and emergency
services. In continuing with this ide&l,eenet is not seeking any public fundsto expand the
project. Instead, the organization is seekingaa lguarantee that will enable it to expand its
coverage, increase its capacity and improve rdilibiAt the conclusion of this project Freenet
will be able to provide broadband wireless Inteseice for every member of the Lawrence
community who chooses to use it.

As part of this proposal, Lawrence Freenet will yide over $12.28 Million worth of
infrastructure and services to the City of Lawrendeee of charge. The Lawrence Freenet
project is also offering to provide 375 new laptepsh year to disadvantaged students.

Based on extensive discussions with administrateeshers, students and members of the
community, Freenet has identified several key athges to the Freenet-Kids proposal.

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, Kansas 66046 (785) 371-4214 http://www.lawrencefreenet.org
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Improved Student Life— Modern students spend more and more of thee working with
computers and the Internet. This valuable toolvedl the students to better understand
themselves and the world they live in. Providintetnet access to students everywhere
within the community will give Lawrence studentsadvantage as they step into the digital
age.

Bringing theInternet to Kids— Freenet already has contracts with thousandpatments
across the City of Lawrence allowing the non-profiganization to build wireless coverage
where the kids live.

Job Creation — The Freenet-Kids proposal will create 15 highldqytech jobs right here in
Lawrence, Kansas.

Security — Modern wireless security standards make it pasito deliver high quality
broadband Internet in a safe and secure manndldr&hwill have all of the benefits of state
of the art encryption and filtering technologiek&zp their information safe.

Police Access— As part of the proposal, the police departmetithvi able to securely access
the Lawrence Freenet network to access databasegports and enforce the law.

Staff Access— City staff will have access to the Freenet nekwororder to communicate
with the city’s existing IT infrastructure. Frontirfig reports to sending e-mail, city workers
will be able to perform their jobs more effectivatythe field.

Library Access— To better serve the community, Lawrence Freellebpen up access to
the Library’s Information Technology resources hy amember of the community who has a
WiFi enabled device. From searching databasesn@wing a book, every citizen in
Lawrence will be able to access the public librémye of charge.

Underground Infrastructure— To serve 10,000 children within the communitgpcence
Freenet will need to install approximately 25 mitdsinderground cable throughout the
community. The organization is proposing that@ity of Lawrence take ownership of half
of this cable ($1.9 Million asset) for its Inteligt Traffic System and other city projects.

Emergency Broadcast — Through the implementation of its HAMMER Emerggnc
Broadcast system, Lawrence Freenet will make isips for emergency information to be
transmitted to any Lawrence Freenet member wharigtly online.

KanREN Access — As part of the proposed infrastructure projeetywtence Freenet will
donate a pair of fiber-optic cables to connect KBNRo the University of Kansas campus,
saving the non-profit organization $3,000/Mo.

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, Kansas 66046 (785) 371-4214 http://www.lawrencefreenet.org
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1. Executive Summary

The goal of the Lawrence Freenet project is to pi@wue wireless broadband to everyone,
everywhere, all of the time, free. The organizatiegan its journey toward this goal by
providing free access to low income families. Thee access is supported by charging a fee to
those who can afford the service. Using this faiag method, Freenet has been able to provide
broadband Internet services to hundreds of Lawressidents - free of charge.

With the launch of the “Lifeline”
service by the World Company, About Freenet

the Lawrence Freenet Project sees Lawrence Freenet, Inc. is part of the Freenet ptpge
a future where low income families partnership dedicated to the idea that digitalrimimion should

. . be available to everyone, everywhere, regardlegscome.
are provided service through an 4 y g

approach that combines the The Freenet project is composed of partnershipsdsst
generosity of existing broadband | municipal governments, non-profit organizations foveprofit
providers with services from service providers.

public interest groups like ours.

As a result, the Lawrence Freenef|| Municipal Non-Profit ror-Profit

Project can now begin to dedicatel City of Lawrence Lawrence Freenet, Ing. Westar gyer

its resources to widening its free
service to other elements of the City of North Lawrence Housing Community Wireless
community. With the Freenet- Newton Authority Communications Co.

Kids initiative, Fr.eenet seeks to, Additional information about Lawrence Freenet, laod the
expand free service to every child| rreenet project is presented in Section 8.

in the Lawrence community who is
under the age of 18.

o

It has always been the philosophy of Lawrence Faetivat municipal funds are best spent on
core city services such as utilities, traffic cohttaw enforcement, public transit and emergency
services. In continuing with this ideal, Freersehot seeking any public funds to expand the
project. Instead, the organization is seekingaa lguarantee that will enable it to expand its
coverage, increase its capacity and improve rdiliabiAt the conclusion of this project Freenet
will be able to provide broadband wireless Inteseriice for every member of the Lawrence
community who chooses to use it.

As part of this proposal, Lawrence Freenet will yide over $12.28 Million worth of
infrastructure and services to the City of Lawrenrdeee of charge. The Lawrence Freenet
project is also offering to provide 375 new laptepsh year to disadvantaged students.

Based on extensive discussions with administrateeghers, students and members of the
community, Freenet has identified several key athgas to the Freenet-Kids proposal.

1. Improved Student Life — Modern students spend more and more of thee working with
computers and the Internet. This valuable toolvedl the students to better understand
themselves and the world they live in. Providintgtnet access to students everywhere
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within the community will give Lawrence studentsadvantage as they step into the digital
age.

2. Open Standards— By using WiFi to deliver broadband service tavk@nce children, the
City will make it possible for kids to access théernet via any WiFi enabled device. This
means that families won’t need expensive modemsaurtérs to get online, their laptop or
desktop will have everything they need.

3. Bringing the Internet to Kids — Freenet already has contracts with thousandpatments
across the City of Lawrence allowing the non-profiganization to build wireless coverage
where the kids live.

4. Mobility — Kids will have access to the Internet from angwehwithin the community.
Whether they are studying at school, playing inghek or studying at home, their WiFi
enabled laptop, PDA or mobile phone will enableritte stay in touch and access
information wherever they are.

5. Security — Modern wireless security standards make it pasto deliver high quality
broadband Internet in a safe and secure manndldr&hwill have all of the benefits of state
of the art encryption and filtering technologiekézp their information safe.

6. Police Access- As part of the proposal, the police departmefitlvei able to securely access
the Lawrence Freenet network to access datab@segports and enforce the law.

7. Staff Access- City staff will have access to the Freenet nekwiororder to communicate
with the city’s existing IT infrastructure. Frontirfig reports to sending e-mail, city workers
will be able to perform their jobs more effectivatythe field.

8. Library Access— To better serve the community, Lawrence Freetilebpen up access to
the Library’s Information Technology resources hy amember of the community who has a
WiFi enabled device. From searching databasesn@wing a book, every citizen in
Lawrence will be able to access the public librémge of charge.

9. Underground Infrastructure — To serve 10,000 children within the communitgycence
Freenet will need to install approximately 25 mitdsinderground cable throughout the
community. The organization is proposing that@ity of Lawrence take ownership of half
of this cable for its Intelligent Traffic Systemdanther city projects.

10. Emergency Broadcast Through the implementation of its HAMMER Emerggnc
Broadcast system, Lawrence Freenet will make isips for emergency information to be
transmitted to any Lawrence Freenet member wharigutly online.

11.KanREN Access- As part of the proposed infrastructure projeetwtence Freenet will
donate a pair of fiber-optic cables to connect KBNRo the University of Kansas campus,
saving the non-profit organization $3,000/Mo.
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Further details about these advantages and serfieanitlined in section 4.

2. Broadband Access — A Community Challenge

“The world is in the midst of a technology revotrti Broadband Internet has become central to
the needs of our families, the health of our ecopand the vitality of our communities. But
Kansas is falling behind other states, and theddrtates is falling behind other countries in the
deployment of broadband Internet connectivity.

Kansas is a rural state with a population of 2.llioni people. That translates into about 33
people per square mile as compared to 79.6 peeplsquare mile in the United States. In order
to sustain and develop our state in the areasadfiheducation and economy, we need to ensure
that every part of the state has outstanding braxadiiinternet access.

Treating high performance connectivity as anoth&eastructure element, similar to power,
water or transportation, creates the proper coticexdiscussion about broadband accéss.”

Broadband penetration (per 100 inhabitants) net increase Q4 2005-Q4 2006, by country

3.283.2613.2p N OECD net increase

RELE =g
ke 2 - - | . A - - ) - - . - - - - | . A - - _g_tg_zaﬂzzs ____________

1 4+

0 t I t —t— — — — —t+— — L L — I —

bﬁbr@\,ﬁ \):\Cg\ rgﬁrg@ § § g@-@‘\,@-“&
& ¥ @ x
o é\@ FCNCAR ﬁ FF «‘@ e CELF S I F S Fos® P S
x@ &
Source : OECD & Website Optimization

Figure 1: US ranks 21st in broadband deployment.

Access to broadband Internet service is as impbamaccess to power, water or transportation.
Broadband Internet access should be looked afrastructure that supports the local economy,
ensuring quality education, equal opportunity fiopédoyment and open markets for products.

Of these benefits, one stands out as far more irapothan the others, education. Without a
broadband Internet connection at home, modern sta@ee at a disadvantage to their Internet
connected peers.

! Kansas Office of Educational Evaluation & Innowatj “State Library of Kansas Broadband Summit
Summary Report”, November, 2, 2007.
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2.1. Home Access

“Having a home computer has been associated wgtiehitest scores in reading, even after
controlling for family income, and other factorsated to reading test scores. Still other findings
indicate that participating in a networked commyoit learners improves educational outcomes
for at-risk children.®

Students that come from under-privileged homes'tgpant of these networked communities.
“Only 37 percent of [children] from families withéomes less than $20,000 use computers at
home, compared to 88 percent of those living inili@aswith annual incomes over $75,000.”

Students from homes with parents who have a logxal lof education are also unlikely to use
an Internet connected computer at home. “Approtetga2 percent of students from
households where no parent has graduated fromskigbol use computers and 37 percent of
them use the Internet. In contrast, approximat8lpé&cent of students from households where
at least oane parent attended graduate school ngeuters and 73 percent of them use the
Internet.’

2.2. Digital Divide

At this point in human history, the digital divitias become almost universally acknowledged.
“There is a ‘digital divide’. Computer and Internet use are divided along deapbdgc and
socioeconomic lines. Use of both technologiesghéi among Whites than among Blacks and
Hispanics.* Students living with more highly educated paremesmore likely to use these
technologies than those living with less well edadgarents, and those living in households
with higher family incomes are more likely to usemputers and the Internet than those living in
lower income households.” — (Emphasis by Originathor)

This digital divide is not out there in poor urbereas or restricted to rural communities, rather it
exists right here in Lawrence. It is hard to thaila stronger endorsement of this idea than the
recent groundbreaking launch of the “Lifeline” seevby Sunflower Broadband. The problem
must indeed be dire when large for-profit compabegin to launch free community services.

2.3. Racial Equality

One key factor in the availability of the Intermeta home is ethnicity. Among children, slightly
more than half of all black and latino children bBaccess to a home computer, and about 40
percent have Internet access at home. By compeu88o5 percent of white children have home
computer access, and 77.4 percent can use thaedhtrhome.

“We are clearly not all a nation online,” says Rab&irlie, an associate professor of economics
at UCSC, “Twenty million children in the United $ta, or 26 percent of children, have no
computer access at home, and race is a key pati@s online and who isn’t””

2 Jackson, Linda A.; Eye, Alexander von; BioccankiaBarbatsis, Gretchen; Zhao, Yong; Fitzgerald,

Hiram “Does Home Internet Use Influence the AcadeRerformance of Low-Income Children?”, Developra¢nt
Psychology, Volume 42, No. 3, 2006.

% DeBell, Matthew; Chapman, Chris, “Computer aneinet Use By Students in 2003”, U.S Department of
Education, September 2006.
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Our community does a disservice to its minority rbens, propagating inequality, impeding
access to education and reducing opportunitieth®entire community by continuing to restrict
Internet access to families with high levels of @tion and high incomes

2.4. Educational Use

The Internet is one of the most powerful educatitoals ever conceived. With instant access to
an ocean of information, broadband Internet coretestudents can research, interact and learn
faster and more comprehensively than ever befStadents without an Internet connection
score lower on standardized tests, have lower graohe averages and are less likely to graduate
from high school

Internet access helps at every stage of developmenting grade school where interactive
websites help students “become more curious afdrfee confident®.

During middle school years, “home Internet use appt empower students and reengage them
in learning at an age when their academic achieaemeditionally drops.*

In high school, “teenagers who have access to leommputers are 6 to 8 percentage points more
likely to graduate from high school than teens \iwix access to a home computer.”

3. Solution Overview

Freenet provides true wireless broadband serviceigimout the City of Lawrence and beyond.
The organization is proposing a working relatiopshith the City of Lawrence that will allow
children within the community to access the Intearg/where, anytime, free.

The proposed service will begin beta testing in éaigf 2008 and, with parental permission,
will be made available to any child in the commuyminh August 1, 2009.

Students and members will be provided with a higgesl Internet connection, phone support
and on-site support. Students will also be pra¥jdes much as is technically possible, with a
safe environment in which to surf the web.

3.1. Child Safety

One of the most important aspects of the Freengs$-Kiitiative is the commitment by the
Freenet staff to provide a network environment tdaaiforms to community standards. Children
are curious and their curiosity has been knowmead them astray. By providing a network that
is filtered by network engineers, Lawrence Freavikkthelp to ensure that access to online
gambling and other inappropriate materials is retstl.

* Jackson, Linda “Children and the Internet It's,fbnt does it make you smarter?”, Monitor on Psjain
Volume 38, No. 10, November 2007.

® Fairlie, Robert “The Effects of Home ComputersSuhool Enroliment”, Economics of Education Review,
Volume 24, Issue. 5, October, 2004.
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Though the Lawrence Freenet vendors and stafb@rerts in network engineering and can
implement a content filtering strategy, they do regiresent the entire community. To ensure
that the filtering policy selected conforms to coomby standards, the organization will invite
local children’s groups to help establish a filbgripolicy. Included in these groups will be:

* Lawrence Police Department » The Lawrence Education Association
« PTA » Juvenile Justice Authority
 USD497 e Success by Six

» City Attorney’s Office * Douglas County Children’s

* Headquarters Development Association

* Bert Nash

Freenet hopes to develop a policy that is broagpfieable by drawing from the expertise of a
diverse group of secular community organizatioAs.part of the technical solution, the
organization also plans to allow parents to addriihg rules for their children, allowing them
flexibility and control over their child’s onlinecthavior.

3.2. Support
- tawrenceFreenst o ff | / vel“iﬁad'_——\ Permissions | Log Out| My Account it | Print

Lawrence Freenet makes use of cutting edge™ " B T e
customer relations management (CRM) =y ADDRESS
software to process customer requests and mses | fsos G2
monitor quality of service. e Becion 5 ‘

Publications NEARFST ACCESS Pole Number: 404924

Projects POINT: Address: 901 MISSISSTPRT s
This software gives customer service st | R ]
representatives the ability to access to real- w20 “R‘“é Serl, 0154 _
. . . . otk Orders Last 3 Notes: There are no notes for this Mesh Radio. B |
time network statistics. Agents can obtain = “wee e, o )

performance data on the nearest five access ..o

Hide Coverage
Manage Togos

points from within the member’s account, T L
remotely access the member’'s modem, and e cusmes
if necessary dispatch a technician to remedy o

Accourt Management

the ISSue. System Management I | 'V‘ ;ﬂﬂ' 7

=
FovRDBY Tomst Wi st

"Wassage Center | Mt cotd €000 Tole s - T f Ll
|'Message Center |

Lawrence Freenet currently staffs customer ..

service representatives from 9 a.m. until 7 . c CRM S ,

p.m. seven days a Week. awrence _reepet . ystem gives support
agents real tim¢ information.

Based on the current volume of customer serviceeetithical support phone calls Freenet
anticipates approximately 30,500 additional corgtheting made within the first year of service.
Lawrence Freenet will staff an additional 5 futh# customer-service representatives to handle
this call volume.

In addition, the organization will provide 5 fullxte on-site support staff. These staff will be
responsible for providing support for the Freenatskhetwork.

The Lawrence Freenet Project will also provide dalted support at the Freenet offices on
Saturdays.
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3.3. Network Throughput

The network that Lawrence Freenet has developedhéas developed to deliver 1,024 Kbps of
bi-directional data under nominal network load. isTmeans that under normal usage (5-10
clients/wireless access point) the network is desigto provide approximately 1,024 Kbps of
Internet TCP/IP traffic to each network user.

This said, the organization is constantly makingrnovements to the network to try and exceed
this goal. In some areas, network access is rfasthr than this, and in some areas network
throughput is slower. Over time the organizatial eontinue to improve coverage, throughput
and the quality of its service.

3.3.1. Transport

The current Lawrence Freenet network makes use00avibps wireless link operating between
Lawrence, Kansas and the organization’s City Ce®tgrare POP in downtown Kansas City.
This link runs at 10% capacity and provides aro8@ilbps of data to Freenet's members in the
City of Lawrence. The link has a historic reliatyilof 99.99%. Redundant connectivity is
provided via two circuits the organization leasesf SBC.

To provide adequate data for the roughly 10,000estits, and 7,000 additional paid members the
organization will lease a fiber-optic cable betwéemwrence, Kansas, and downtown Kansas
City, Missouri. Total capacity on this fiber-optiable will be 1 Gbps, allowing the organization
to increase network capacity by a factor of 3. @tganization’s existing 300 Mbps wireless

link would then become the secondary, fail ovenraxtion.

3.3.2. Bandwidth

Bandwidth for Lawrence Freenet will be purchasedfiCogent Communications. Based on
current user data, the organization anticipatesea fior 15 Kbps of backbone connectivity for
each network user. This means that in order teedeoth paying members and the students, the
organization would purchase around 300 Mbps of Wttt at the Kansas City demarcation
point.

6th Street - Cilsco Router 23660 - FTPE00 to CCS - Fal/sl

bhits per second

Wed 20:00 Thu 08: 08 Thu B4: 08 Thu B8: 08 Thu 12: 08 Thu 1&: 080
From 2007/11/28 17:09:26 To 2007/11/29 17:09;26

E Inbound Current: 18.76 M Average: 16.90 M Maximum: 29.94 M  Total In:
W Cutbhound Current : 4,97 M Average: 3.97 M Maximum: 5.14 M
Total Out: 42,84 GB

Figure 2: Aggregate data throughput for approximatdy 2,000 devices on the Freenet network
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The demarcation point for this data will likely thee Bryant Network Operations Center (NOC)
located at 1102 Grand Ave, where Freenet will legsese for the requisite switching. The
organization already leases space in the City €&geare building which will continue to be
used to house the backup link to Lawrence.

3.4. Wireless Coverage

Lawrence Freenet currently provides wireless braadlzoverage over approximately 60% of
the Lawrence community. This coverage encompdbseareas of the community that are most
likely to host student housing, specifically laggartment complexes and other multi-family
dwelling units.

3.4.1. Improving Coverage

As part of its commitment to provide Universal imet access in Lawrence, Freenet is
constantly expanding its wireless coverage withenxdommunity. In the last year alone the
organization’s network has expanded from arountig§b power access points to well over 550.

—

T e |
i PEEE

" e

e G
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Figure 3: Coverage Expansion January-November 2007

Over the course of the next year the organizatiangpto increase this number even further by
adding approximately 400 additional access poifiitsese access points are being installed
specifically to enable the organization to providiable high speed coverage for students. With
radio costs of approximately $2,100/radio this é&se in coverage represents an investment of
$840,000 on the part of the organization.

Coupled with a large investment in undergroundrfiiyatic cable (covered in Section Fiber-optic
Cable 3.6.3 of this document), the organizatiorn el capable of delivering high quality service
to 95% of the Lawrence community.

What about the other 5%? The 5% of the commuhay will not be covered as part of the
project are areas that do not have the requiredstriicture to support a wireless network of this
type. These areas include:

* Neighborhoods without utility poles or street light
» Interior of buildings made of unfriendly materials.
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* Private property where owners do not wish to makeservice available.

Members in these areas of the community will noable to use a laptop computer to access the
network directly, however, the organization wiillsible to provide broadband service via an
outdoor CPE mounted on the side of the home. @utG®E devices are discussed in greater
detail in Section 3.5.

3.4.2. Mobility

One of the key features that the Freenet netwolikowing to Lawrence is mobility. Students
and members will have true broadband Internet acaegwhere within the Lawrence
community. Members can use the service at themmeh@t their jobs, while out and about on
Massachusetts St. and even from_the passeegerof a moving car.

Figure 4: Mobility is a key demand of modern studets.

With the advent of mobile computing devices like tRhone, this will give students and
members access to network resources, e-mail, assvlends and family anywhere within the
community.

3.4.3. WiFi Standard

The Freenet network makes use of the 802.11g stmddach means that members do not need
to have a cable modem, or DSL modem to accessittmét. Members can access the web
using any WiFi enabled device, including a laptomputer, an iPhone or a PDA.

The use of standards based technology means tmabene have a choice as to which devices
they want to use and how they are going to use .them
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Figure 5: WiFi is increasingly available in a varigy of devices.

3.5. Customer Premise Equipment (CPE)

For a network user to get onto a traditional cablBSL network they need to have a modem to
translate the signal generated by the Interneti@eRrovider (ISP) into an Ethernet signal that
can be understood by the computer.

To use the Freenet network, most members can singglyheir computer’s built in wireless
card. These cards are rapidly becoming ubiquitoe$ectronic equipment; however, some
desktop computers do not come with built in wireladapters.

There are also cases where a member might live@merete basement, isolated residence or
other location that is not conducive to providingeless broadband service.

For these members, Freenet provides a CPE solii@iranslates the wireless signal generated
by the WiFi network into an Ethernet signal that b& understood by the computer.

These devices are sold at cost ($121) and hawgheploiwer wireless transmitter that enables
them to provide service in locations where the legg signal might be weak or degraded. These
devices are fully supported by the organization eartbe installed by a trained technician upon
request from the member. The units can also bagtgdal and supported through the
organization’s customer relations management suigdjng it easy to identify and correct
problems for members in a short time frame.

10
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Figure 6: Supported CPE Device - PePwave Surf

The organization also provides an outdoor solutiouch like a satellite dish, that can bring the
wireless signal into the home from a distant Wiéde. These outdoor units can provide quality
service for users who are up to 1,000 ft. fromrtearest WiFi access point.

Figure 7: Outdoor CPE

As part of its commitment to providing quality siee/to the community, Freenet is currently
working on a less expensive version of each ofel&RBE devices which will be available in the
spring of 2008. These devices are based on opgnestechnology and will be available to
members at the organization’s wholesale cost. &ivantage to using official CPE devices is
that they are fully supported by the organizatiaipport staff and installation technicians. This
means that any time a device fails or breaks tharozation replaces them free of charge.

11
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3.6. Infrastructure

To provide reliable coverage for the community,eéfet plans to make a significant investment
in expanding and upgrading its already extensifrastructure. Key improvements include:

* Expanding coverage within apartment complexes
» Covering areas with low population density

» Installing a fiber-optic backbone

* Installing additional access points

3.6.1. Expanding Apartment Complex Coverage

To effectively serve students and members reqtiemstallation of wireless equipment at the
apartment complexes in which many residents live.make these installations, the organization
must have an agreement with the complex owner allpihem to install the equipment, use
complex power and perform regular maintenance.

Over the past two years, Freenet has negotiateiangnts with over 50 apartment complexes in
the Lawrence area, including complexes managed égddwbrooke, Midwest Property
Management, Nolan Reality, Gage Management and oiieys.

As part of any agreement with the City of Lawrerfeeenet would commit to further expanding
its apartment complex agreements to include anypt®in which a student or member wants
coverage.

Freenet’'s agreements with apartment complexesma&wed to make it easy for complex
owners and managers to say yes. Installationpafermed free of charge and are done in a
professional and well-planned manner.

3.6.2. Low Density Housing

As an organization dedicated to bringing the Ireéto everyone in the community, regardless
of income, Freenet’s original network rollout skgapareas where housing density was too low
to justify the expense of installing coverage. Example, coverage was not deployed in the
Alvamar Country Club neighborhood.

12
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Figure 8: Freenet coverage in Alvamar neighborhood.

As part of the organization’s commitment to pror@©95% coverage throughout the City of
Lawrence, coverage will be deployed in neighborlsabét were not deployed during the initial
network rollout.

3.6.3. Fiber-optic Cable

Freenet is the first and only municipal WiFi netwdo be deployed entirely on wireless
technology. The current network makes use of ea®links at every layer of the network, from
its primary connection to the internet (a 37 mihd) to the tower interconnects (2 mile links) to
end user service (200ft links).

The infrastructure that the organization is usiag kignificant redundancy built in. At each and
every layer of the service network user traffic hagdtiple potential routes to the Internet.

What that means is that the organization has blelent@ construct a reliable service using
wireless connections.

Though this approach has worked well for the orztion to date, the influx of tens of
thousands of high-demand users will flood the netwath more traffic than the existing all-
wireless infrastructure can support.

To avoid this problem, the organization plans t&ena significant investment in underground
fiber-optic cable. Lawrence Freenet is planningnmtalling approximately 25.6 miles of fiber
within Lawrence. This cable will act as an enhahloackbone network connecting the
organization’s existing POPs and extending 100Migzkhaul connections to approximately 83
mesh gateways throughout the City of Lawrence.

13
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Figure 9: Proposed Fiber Routes

An interactive version of this map is available at:

http://www.lawrencefreenet.org/fiber plan col.html

The organization now has firm bids on this portodrthe project from a reputable contractor
which total $1,963,500.

3.6.4. Access Points — Mesh Networking

To provide user level coverage, the organizatias yOmW mesh radio equipment connected
to light poles, roof tops, traffic control signasd apartment buildings. These radios are
distributed throughout the community and make dseesh networking protocols to connect
subscribers to the Internet.

Mesh networking is a recent innovation in wirelesshnology, allowing organizations like
Lawrence Freenet to build municipal scale wirelessvorks.

In a mesh networking environment each radio actsf@stential Internet gateway for every other
radio in the vicinity. This means that even thoaghindividual radio (node) is not connected to
the Internet directly, it can still relay data ketinternet by sending it to a neighboring node.
That neighboring node is either directly connedtethe Internet and able to send the traffic, or
it relays the data to another neighboring nodeithaConfused? Have a look at the following
diagram.
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Figure 10: Mesh Networking

The overall result is a network in which only oné of every five nodes needs to be connected
directly to the Internet. This significantly reciscthe cost of deploying the coverage. In
addition, the redundant nature of the technologgmadhat a failure of any single node will not
affect its neighbors who simply route the traffroand the outage.

To increase coverage density in Lawrence to thetpbat it can support students and members
will require the organization to increase the numdfgadios from 550 to around 950. This
includes significant density increases in areasr&vhestoric records show high demand such as
Tennessee St. and Emory Drive. With radio costeppfoximately $2,100/radio this increase in
coverage represents an investment of $820,000eopdtt of the organization.

3.7. Security

One of the most common misconceptions that theipbbk is that wireless broadband is
inherently insecure. This is largely due to mistakhat were made related to cryptography early
on in the development of wireless broadband tedyies.

With the advent of new cryptography standards aaadards based authentication protocols,
wireless networks can provide a level of secuhit is equivalent, and can far exceed,
traditional cable or DSL networks.

The proposed security strategy for deploying wsgleechnologies for students within Lawrence
is based on the following imperatives:

Freenet and/or Freenet systems should not havesatttany student information.

15
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All authentication information will be encryptedtae application layer prior to transmission
over the network.
Students will have the choice of using secure @nopireless networks.

3.7.1. Secure Network

The proposed model for security is WPA2 Enterp{@2.1x) — the highest level of wireless
encryption that is currently available. Under tmedel students use their username and
password as credentials for their authenticatibmese accounts will be created and hosted by
Lawrence Freenet on a secure LDAP server. Panalhtse able to obtain accounts for their
children through an application process that welldefined as the project progresses.

°  Security Settings

" Personal 1 Security @ Erterprise Securiy

Metwork Suthentication: [P -Erterpiss. 7]
Dats Encryption [eescowr 5]
B Ensblie 502 1x
Authertication Ty [TTLS =] [[Cisco Diptians..
~Step 1 of 2: TTLS User
Aulhentication Protocol:  [Fap =l

User Credentials; I Use the following i

Roaming Identiy: MIDDLEBR W Ajoshua montgomery:

Adyanced... Help? [ << Back l[ Mest 5> ][ ok l[ Cancel ]

Figure 11: Enterprise Security Example

The wireless radio encrypts the username and padsiv@ugh a secure tunneled connection
that is proxied to a RADIUS server.

Assuming the user’s credentials are verified byRA®IUS server, the wireless radio then
encrypts the data between the user and the rantig as AES encryption algorithm. This
algorithm represents the state of the art in modgyptography and is commonly used to secure
financial information, information transfers, arsdused by the CIA.

3.7.2. Open Network

The above detailed model makes use of WPA2-Entrpan encryption algorithm supported by
a wide range of wireless devices. Unfortunatelgnysmaller wireless devices such as hand
held computers and WiFi enabled phones do not tievability to support this level of
encryption.

For devices that are not capable of using WPA-pnitez, an open network would be deployed.

This network would function in much the same waytescurrent “Freenet” network that covers
60% of the community.

16
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When connecting to this network, student’s browsersld be re-directed to a secure gateway
website. Traffic between the student’s computer thie gateway is secured using a 256-bit SSL
key exchange.

Students would then enter their username and padsivoe secure gateway would open a
connection to a RADIUS server using the same exgdaescribed in Section 3.7.1. Once the
RADIUS server has verified that the user is indeetudent a port on the security gateway
would open up and allow traffic from the studemitsnputer or hand-held device out onto the
Internet.

3.8. Equipment

At the current time, many children in Lawrence liméhouseholds that do not have a computer.
Without a computer, these students will not be ébkeccess the Freenet-Kids network. In order
to provide these students with the educationakttday need, Freenet proposed that the City of
Lawrence work in concert with the the Lazarus Ripjinc. to expand the reuse of legacy public
equipment here in Lawrence Kansas.

Freenet has given away dozens of computers tofigadamilies over the course of its first two
years of operations. Most of these computers weginally donated by the City of Lawrence,
the University of Kansas or the Lazarus Projediesk organizations can help reduce toxic
waste and promote a community with universal Ireeatcess by formalizing the recycling
process and making recycled computers availabi@ntdies throughout the community.

Freenet is currently working with the Lazarus Pebje expand its computer refurbishing effort
and will commit to providing 2,000 computers todstats as part of this project.

As part of its financial commitment to the projdeteenet will also provide 375 new laptops to
qualified children within the community each year.

4. Municipal Involvement

The original Freenet project required very littwaolvement on the part of the City of Lawrence.
The City provided access to the right-of-way andate city facilities and Freenet committed to
providing free service for low income families.

With its core network established, Freenet is seekery little additional involvement from the
City of Lawrence. Our goal, as always, is to pdevihe most benefits to the community with
the least investment. That is why Lawrence Fresnedt seeking a contract for paid service, or
a subsidy from the municipal government; rathex,dlganization is seeking a loan guarantee
that will allow a local lender to provide $4.9Mfinancing over the next 18 month.

4.1. Financial Proposal

To expand its coverage, increase capacity and vemaliability, the Freenet Project will invest
$5.45M in network improvements. These improvementiide:

1. Installation of a fiber-optic backbone
2. Expansion of WiFi radio coverage
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3. Installation of emergency power systems

To fund these improvements, Lawrence Freenet wiitdw $4.9M from a local lending
institution. The remaining $550,000 will come fréireenet’s paying members.

This loan yields an exciting opportunity to fune threenet-Kids initiative in a manner that is
revenue neutral to the City of Lawrence. All tilabheeded is a loan guarantee. This guarantee
will enable the organization to borrow the funda aignificantly lower interest rate and over a
longer period of time than would be possible otheew This frees up funds to provide universal
access to the children of Lawrence.

Local Lender

60 Months Payment
12.5% $110,656/Mo _
Freenet
Difference
—— $57,277/Mo
$4.9M
120 Months Payment
Guarantee 5.5% $531379/M0

City of Lawrence

Figure 12: The City's guarantee frees up funds suitfient to provide service to every child in Lawrene

The proposed loan would be guaranteed by both Leseréreenet and Community Wireless
Communications Co. the project’s primary servicavpder. As an additional indicator of good
faith Joshua Montgomery, the project’s founder, \aanteered to guarantee the note ahead of
the City of Lawrence.

Order of Guarantors
Lawrence Freenet, Inc.
Community Wireless Communications Co.
Joshua Montgomery (Personally)
The City of Lawrence

In addition to providing paper guarantees, Lawrda@eenet and CWC have agreed to pledge the
following collateral to the City of Lawrence.
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Collateral Asset Value
Existing Municipal WiFi Network $2,400,000
Underground Fiber-Optic Cable $1,900,000
Additional Network Infrastructure (Radio Equip|)$820,000

Total Collateral $5,120,000

4.1.1. Precedents

There are several precedents for municipal invobminm economic and social development
projects of this type.

4.1.1.1. Existing Economic Development Projects

In May of 2004, the City of Lawrence approved asaymation easement for Orchard’s Corners
Golf Course, in which the City of Lawrence in camgtion with the Orchards benefit district
steering committee was able to provide $280,00f)dler to obtain a conservation easement on
the property.

This action benefitted 50 families in a small n&igihood by keeping property values at a
premium, improving drainage and guaranteeing thatand would remain green space for the
foreseeable future.

Though Lawrence Freenet is seeking larger guarstiee organization will benefit a much
larger portion of the community, providing broadtaervices for up to 10,000 school age
children.

This is one of many examples of how city governnoamt get creative in order to finance a
project that benefits the entire community.

4.1.1.2. Municipal Wireless

There are many municipalities throughout the coutitat are providing significant funds for
municipal wireless projects. These communitiestBaetheir local governments, utilities, law
enforcement agencies and citizens can benefit tnoiversal Internet access.

Large scale projects are underway in Kansas contragitike Olathe, Lenexa, Overland Park
and even tiny Osage City. Around the country comities like Oklahoma City, Minneapolis
and Corpus Christi are making large investmentkeése technologies.

In many of these communities the municipal goveminhas taken the roll of financial partner
by either purchasing the network outright or beaggran anchor tenant and guaranteeing a
certain level of payment to the network operators.

By providing loan guarantees to Lawrence FreereCity of Lawrence benefits the community
by making free service available to school agedcéi. At the same time the city benefits itself
by ensuring connectivity for traffic control, proMng universal access to the local library and
providing service for city workers and law enforaarh
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Existing municipal wireless networks have largedeb supported by the municipalities out of
general revenue. The approach that Freenet iogpirogy where the non-profit organization pays
off the loan, is new and novel. This approach rsdke proposal revenue neutral to the
municipality, while still providing the city withleof the benefits a municipal wireless network
can bring to bear.

Examples of other municipal WiFi networks and tloeists to the taxpayers appear below:

St. Cloud, FL Moorhead, MN

Nodes: 345 Nodes: 352

Building Cost: $1.9 million Building Cost: $2.2 million
Maintenance Cost: $276,000 per year Municipal Cost per node: about $6,250

Unique Devices Registered: 11,719
Municipal Cost per node: about $7,100

Chaska, MN Lawrence, KS

Nodes: 250 Nodes: 550

Building Cost: $1.3 million Building Cost: $2.4 million
Labor was donated Subscribers: 1,200
Subscribers: 2,020 Municipal Cost per nod&0

Municipal Cost per node: about $5,200

4.2. Alternative Financing Methods

The preferred method for financing the Freenet-Kidgect is through a loan secured by
Lawrence Freenet and guaranteed by Community VEsedad Joshua Montgomery. The City
of Lawrence would then take the fourth guarantestipm. There is a potential issue, however,
in that securing financing using this method mayfriavithin existing statutory guidelines. If it
is determined that Freenet’s preferred methodnafrfcing the project does not fit within existing
economic development financing models, Freenet avprdpose the following.

4.2.1. Municipal Bond Offering

One alternative method of financing the project lddae to issue a municipal bond offering with
Freenet as the beneficiary. Freenet would thetigel¢he existing network and the first $53,000
in monthly revenue to the City of Lawrence. Thé&@vould then use these funds to pay off the
bonds over a 10 year period.
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Figure 13: Alternative method of financing FreenetKids

This approach has the benefit that funds for tlagept could be obtained at an even lower
interest rate and the resulting bonds would likedytax exempt.

4.2.2. Other Traditional Financing Mechanism
Funding for economic development projects can ta&ay forms. Since City staff has

significant expertise in building

economic develagmnhpackages for desirable local businesses,

Freenet would be very interested in working witd @ity of Lawrence to identify a financing
mechanism that makes the project possible, whileasting in the best interest of the public.

4.3. Service Provider
As a non-profit organization de

suited to developing and deploying technology usntgrnal assets. Rather than become a tech

company, the organization has

dicated to commuséyice, Lawrence Freenet, Inc. is not well

decided to focu®wnhcome fulfillment, fund raising,

strategic planning and interfacing with both they@if Lawrence and Westar Energy.
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With this in mind, Freenet will implement the plathnetwork improvements with its existing
service provider, Community Wireless Communicati@os (CWC) CWC was selected as
Freenet’s choice of vendor due to lack of intefiesn other parties. Though Freenet approached
local service providers early in the project ncalogervice provider had any interest in partnering
to provide the financing necessary to get theahitetwork installed. CWC approached other
local service providers in July of 2007 to inquatgout partnering to better serve Lawrence. No
local service provider had any interest in a padm@. In addition to seeking a local partner,
Freenet took out a national advertisement in thelWwaton Post on July, 10 2006 to solicit
other interested parties, however the organizaBorived no letters of interest. This solicitation
appears as Appendix B. To date CWC has investeiMbid the project, taking a lion’s share of
the financial risk.

Lawrence Freenet sees no need to pursue anothgwnen this phase of the project. CWC has
demonstrated extensive expertise with deployingagtfucture and currently provides support,
maintenance and fulfillment services on the bebithe non-profit.

Attached as Appendix A is CWC'’s price fixed bid fostalling and maintaining the required
equipment for the next ten years. With investike the Kansas Technology Enterprise
Corporation and Douglas County Bank, CWC has thanitial wherewithal to ensure that the
implementation goes smoothly and the technical kreswto ensure that the final product is of
the highest quality.

A diagram showing the relationship between Lawrdfeenet, Inc. and Community Wireless
Communications Co. appears below as Figure 14.
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Figure 14: The Lawrence Freenet Project

It should be noted that a majority of the staff winark on the Lawrence Freenet Project full
time work for CWC rather than Lawrence Freenet,;Inowever, the board of directors of
Lawrence Freenet is ultimately responsible forgragect.

Lawrence Freenet Board

Current Profession

Adam Mansfield - President

Kris Adair - Treasurer

Matthew Kuzinski — Vice President
Todd Hiatt

Kevin Kennedy

Attorney — The Stat&anfhsas
Mother
Director of Teology - CLO
Attorney - Ralston, Pope & Diehl, L.L.C.

Environmental Health Specialist -1@kn’s Mercy
Hospital

It should be noted that as part of any involvenignthe City of Lawrence in the project,
Lawrence Freenet, Inc. would request a membereo€itly staff join the board of directors.

Though this is not mandatory, it would improve sparency and give the City of Lawrence a
voice in how the project progresses. The non-pvaduld also welcome a member representing
USD497, the Lawrence Education Association andahgr community group whose mission is
in line with Freenet’s goals.
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5. Municipal Services

Lawrence Freenet is not asking for a handout.xthange for a loan guarantee the organization
is willing to provide the City of Lawrence with a&ts and services worth $12,280,000 over the
first 10 years of service. It should be noted thlaén adjusted for inflation this represents as
much benefit to the city as the total franchisesfeaid by both the local cable operator and the
local telephone carrier combined.

Included in the municipal amenities are:

» Universal broadband access for every child in Lanvee

* Ownership of over 25 miles of fiber-optic cabledted throughout the community.
» Offsite access for city workers

» Secure access for the Police Department

* Universal Access to Public Library IT Resources

« HAMMER Emergency Broadcast System

» KanREN access for serving the University of Kansas

5.1. Freenet-Kids — Universal Broadband for Childre n

The core service being proposed by Lawrence Fregireeenet-
KIDS. This service would be delivered on a sema&8ID from
Freenet’s current low income and member servidé® SSID
“Freenet-KIDS” would be broadcast city wide and veballow any
child to access the Internet using any WiFi enaldiedce.

As has been discussed above, the network wouleéwaaped with
child friendly filtering technology and would prale true broadband
speeds of 1,024 Kbps under nominal network load.

Children within the community would be able to maise of the
network for educational activities such as researdhcational
games, document composition, and much, much more.

By providing universal Internet access to everydcim the community, Lawrence would become
a national leader in broadband access and an egdmpther communities across the United
States. By doing it without any municipal expeaddt the City would demonstrate financial
prudence and help pave the way for a working méodehunicipal wireless.

The Lawrence Freenet project has already caused otimmunities across the state to take
notice. Osage City, for example, cites Lawrena@ehket as a key factor in creating their own
municipal WiFi project. When contacted by Freaegfarding the status of their project City
Commissioner Jason Croucher of Osage closed higileamth “I know your organization has
done some excellent work in Lawrence (in the enduye our inspiration).”

By providing children throughout the City of Lawrenwith broadband Internet access, Freenet
will be providing a service that is worth $9,4200fer a ten year time frame. This number
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was arrived at by multiplying Lawrence Freenet'siimium subscriber cost ($7.85/Mo) by
10,000 students. Taking this number and multighby 120 months yields a benefit of
$9,420,000.

The proposed service includes:

1. Basic telephone support
2. Five full time field support staff dedicated exdledy to Freenet-Kids
3. Wireless broadband access for children throughwtommunity

It should be noted that it does not include in-h@upport for each and every student. To
receive help getting their computers online parentstudents will need to bring their device into
the daily in-school support session.

5.2. Fiber-optic Cable

There are several ways that the current Lawreneeriet
proposal can save the City of Lawrence money irshuet term.
One way the project can save the city money isrbyiging a
significant infrastructure asset to the City of lkance as partial
compensation for the loan guarantee.

As part of the proposed solution, Lawrence Freplagts to

provide the City of Lawrence with % of the fibertgpcable

being installed in the course of the project. 8itie engineering
for the project has yet to be implemented, theadetumber of proposed strands is unknown, but
it is likely that more than 96 strands will be el&d on each fiber route.

Since the City of Lawrence is likely to receive Egad funds for the installation of its ITS
system, the Lawrence Freenet team would like toudis how ownership of the fiber-optic cable
can be passed off to the city in the most revefffi@esnt manner. At the end of the project it is
Lawrence Freenet’s goal that the City of Lawrendky fown its fiber-optic backbone.
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Table 1: Proposed Fiber-Optic Cable Routes

Start End Distance (Miles)
Core Network
1462 US-40 6 W 6th St. 15
6 W 6th St. 6th St. & lowa St. 14
6th St. & lowa St. 6th St. & Wakarusa Dr. 25
6th St. & lowa St. 23rd St. & lowa St. 2
6th St. & Wakarusa Dr. 23rd St. & Wakarusa Dr. 2
23rd St. & Wakarusa Dr. 23rd St. & lowa St. 2.5
23rd St. & lowa St. 23rd St. & Harper Ave. 25
Bob Billings Pkwy. & Wakarusa Dr. Bob Billings Pkwy & lowa St. 25
23rd St. & lowa St. 33rd St. & lowa St. 15
6 W 6th St. 23rd St. & Massachusetts St. 2.1
19th St. & lowa St. 19th St. & Harper Ave. 2.5
Sub-Total Core 23
Spur Sites
3608 W. 6th St. 6th St. Tower 0.125
600 Mississippi St. 1200 Mississippi St. 0.6
23rd St. & Harper Ave. 2100 Harper Ave. 0.125
Bob Billings Pkwy & Kasold Dr. 1800 Kasold 0.5
2300 Wakarusa Dr. 4924 Stoneback PI 0.125
600 Lawrence Ave 200 Lawrence Ave 1
lowa St. & Oxford Rd. Water Tower Park 0.125
Sub-Total Spur 2.6
Total Additional Fiber 25.6
% [ map | sateliite | Fiord |
~ Wansas Tumplke {gJ — i 1
B g, 4 o—
Martin| Park _w_a','n_ni\ﬁ'!“e
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Figure 15: Proposed Fiber-Optic Cable Routes

The installation of this asset represents a siggnifi financial incentive for the City of Lawrence
and can likely reduce projected expenditures i io¢ Information Technology department and
the Public Works department.
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Information Technology, for example, can cut exgsnsy eliminating T-1 service to a number
of city facilities.

As for Public Works, the City of Lawrence currentigs plans on the books to implement an
intelligent traffic control system or"&St. By allowing Lawrence Freenet to install ttéble as
part of its larger fiber project, the City couldssaa significant sum of money in FY2008.

Freenet’'s vendor CWC currently has proposals insedtom reputable fiber-optic cable
installation organizations that place the valuéhedf part of the proposal at $1,963,501.

5.3. Police Access

Over the past several years, Lawrence Freenet has
discussed the data needs of the Police Department o
several occasions. With the addition of a fibetiop
backbone, Lawrence Freenet can now provide thé ddve
service that the Police department has indicated it
requires in order to use the network.

As part of this proposal, Freenet would provideadat
transport services to the City of Lawrence Police
Department at no cost. This would enable the polic
department to access broadband online resouraes lik :
finger print databases, facial recognition databafile servers and communications
infrastructure from patrol cars located anywhesgda the city limits.

Police Officers could also access the network fpaim pilots, laptop computers or any other
WiFi enabled device. This opens the doors to nexayting applications that can speed up law
enforcement, reduce overhead expenditures and yragmablic safety for all citizens of
Lawrence.

The company cannot provide free equipment or supgpdhe City of Lawrence Police
Department though Lawrence Freenet will providesasdo the city wide WiFi network as part
of the Freenet-Kids initiative. If the departmeeeds expertise in the installation and
maintenance of its wireless equipment or needswlpinternal routing, external routing,
encryption, mobile VPN solutions or other itemgho$ nature, they would need to be contracted
with an outside party.

Freenet currently charges paying members $20/Medoh connection. Freenet currently

estimates that the police department will evenyuadle 100 devices to connect to the network,
from laptops, to patrol cars, to security systeonBDAsS. This places the monthly value of this
gift at $2,000. Over a 10 year term this provifiz40,000 in benefits to the City of Lawrence.
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5.4. Staff Access

All city staff from the planning department, thelities
department, and public works would have accedsaMtiFi
network to help complete their daily jobs.

Potential applications include:
Faster inspections & permits for residents

Improved remote access to GIS information
Off site access to e-mail & file servers

Once access to city network resources becomesabiail s
universally, staff will likely think up a number other ways to better serve the Lawrence
community.

Once again, Lawrence Freenet will provide datasjart, but the installation, configuration,
support and maintenance of the equipment necessancess the network will be the sole
responsibility of the City of Lawrence.

Freenet currently estimates that the City of Laweewill eventually use 100 devices to connect
to the network. At an aggregate cost of $20/Ma¢hsould provide a benefit of $240,000 to the
City over a 10 year timeframe.

5.5. Library Access

The Lawrence Public Library is one of the most im@ot resources in the community. It serves
as a focal point for community events, providetiaal information to students and has one of
the most impressive Information Technology initias in the City.

Though this is a great asset to the communityvasae, limited Internet access within the
community can make it hard to use these valualsleurees from remote locations.

As part of the Freenet-Kids proposal and partot@mmitment to education in Lawrence, the
Lawrence Freenet team would like to make accettsethibrary’s IT resources universally
available.

To do this, the Freenet team would simply add tibedry’s website to the list of resources that

are available without a Freenet account. Right tiege include Google Maps, The Lawrencian
and Lawrence Freenet’s own website.
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If 'Other' please specify:
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* Dreniivnd Einldn

Figure 16: Lawrence Freenet's Login Page Allows FreAccess to Certain Sites

By adding the public library and its IT resourcedlis site, Freenet would effectively make
access to library resources universal. Citizemsfacross the community would be able to
access the Library’s website using any WiFi enaliedce.

Lawrence Freenet would currently charge paying webef the Public Library’s size $1,000 to
make their resources available to the communitiiouit a payment. This means that over a 120
month time frame this amenity is worth $120,000.

5.6. HAMMER Emergency System

With more and more people using the Internet as éxelusive source for voice, video and data,
providing information to residents of the City letevent of an emergency has become
increasingly difficult.

Traditional emergency broadcast systems use tedevasd radio to alert the community in the

event of severe weather, chemical spills or othiécal emergencies. Since many members of
the community don’t tune into these resourcesgtigea significant danger that they may miss

an important warning.

The High Availability Municipal Mesh Emergency Resise (HAMMER) System is Freenet’'s

answer to this problem. This system was desigo@dake emergency information available to
network users independent of radio or televisiaadcasts.
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The system acts to interrupt every web sessiom@métwork and re-direct traffic at an
emergency information page. What does this mean?

If there are 11,000 members using the network tessthe Internet and the HAMMER System
is activated, all 11,000 members will be autom#lyaa-directed to a single web page the next
time they refresh their web browser. The web pagght contain information on a severe
weather event, national crisis or other danger@esateon the University campus.

As part of the Freenet-Kids project, the organ@atvould coordinate the use of the HAMMER
system with city emergency services allowing thermtplement the system in the event of an
emergency.

5.7. Kansas Research and Education Network (KanREN)

As part of the Freenet-Kids initiative Lawrence éfret will also provide a direct fiber-optic
connection between the KanREN facility located4Q3. South Wakarusa and the Elsworth
Annex on the campus of the University of Kansakis Tonnection will be used by KanREN to
better serve universities and schools throughauStiate of Kansas. It will also allow KanREN
to improve services, reduce telecommunications @edtbetter serve the community.

Leased lines of this type would typically cost appmately $1,500 for each demarcation point.
Bringing the total value contributed to KanREN ®(80/Mo or $360,000 over 120 Months.

5.8. Financial Benefits

The total financial benefit to the City of Lawrenfoe guaranteeing Freenet’s loan from a local
lender is $12,280,000 over a 10 year period. @bes not include difficult to quantify benefits
like improved community access, improved educatiod a nation-wide reputation for being a
leader in information technology.

Other hard to quantify benefits include:

Job Creation —The Lawrence Freenet Project would hire 17 adaftidull time staff to support
the project. All of these staff members are paddl @bove the living wage and receive full
medical and dental benefits.

Budgetary Offsets —By providing fiber-optic connectivity to trafficontrol signal, water
department infrastructure and other hard asseid;tbenet-Kids initiative will enable the City of
Lawrence to reduce planned expenditures. By reduexpenditures allocated to these types of
projects, the City of Lawrence can cut its ovebaltigetary expenditures and save taxpayers
money.

Increased Tax Base -Since Kansas Law does not have a category for-fmmofit Internet
Service Provider” Lawrence Freenet pays salesmaadleequipment sales.

Public School Equipment— As part of its proposal, Lawrence Freenet witiyide 375
($75,000) in free laptops to children within theroaunity each year for 10 years.
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Figure 17 shows a graphical representation of tbpgsed economic development arrangement.
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Figure 17: Financial Benefits of Lawrence Freenet iposal
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6. Schedule
There are four major tasks will be completed as plathe Freenet-Kids initiative.
Task Start Date  End Date
Mesh Radio Installation 3/17/2008 7/15/2008
Fiber-optic Cable Planning 3/3/2008 5/30/2008
Fiber-optic Cable Installation 6/2/2008 5/30/2009
Filtering Policy Development 4/1/2008 5/30/2008
Filter Installation & Testing 6/2/2008 8/1/2008
Beta Testing Support Development  8/1/2008 8/1/2009
Beta Testing Period 8/1/2008 8/1/2009
Freenet-Kids Launch 8/3/2009 -
Freenet-Kids Production Support 8/3/2009 -
* |Radio Installation ‘ Mon 3/17/08‘ Tue 7/15/08 ’ ‘[:|7 B
z F@ber Planning Mon 3/3/08  Fri 5/30/08 _%
Fiber Installation Mon 6/2/08 Tue 6/2/09
* |Freenet-Kids Filtering Policy Development ~ Tue 4/1/08 Fri 5/30/08 el

@

Freenet-Kids Filter Installation
Freenet-Kids Beta Period
Freenet-Kids Beta Support
Freenet-Kids Launch

~ @

o

Mon 6/2/08

Fri 8/1/08
Tue 7/1/08
Mon 8/3/09

Fri 8/1/08
Fri 7/31/09
Sat 8/1/09
Thu 8/1/19

]
g

e

Freenet-Kids Production Support Mon 8/3/09 Thu 8/1/19

Figure 18: Freenet-Kids Master Schedule

7. Financial Summary

Lawrence Freenet, Inc. has strived to evaluatertheket potential of its paid products in a
unbiased light. The forecasts presented are lasé#ae best information available. As part of
its proposal, the project’s service provider, ComityuWireless Communications Co. has
guaranteed subscriber growth for the 18 month gexir@ompassing this project. CWC'’s
fulfillment contract will contain a penalty claupenalizing the organization for falling short of
sales expectations and rewarding the company foresling them.

The success of municipal WiFi projects in other oamities such as Chaska, Minnesota, lead
the project to believe that total market penetratar a Freenet’s product can reach up to 15%
within two year of network launch. It should beaewthat the first section of production quality
coverage for the Lawrence Freenet project was laohan May 2007.

Lawrence Freenet plans to spend available fundscxpanding its network, improving the
quality of the service, and marketing the servacéhe community.

7.1. Current Financing
To date Lawrence Freenet has been financed by @&yorrsources:

1. Paying members who choose to use Freenet’s wirbtessiband service to access the
Internet.
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2. Vendor financing — As part of their service agreatmendors provided financing for the
initial network rollout on behalf of Lawrence Fretn

As of December 31, 2007, Lawrence Freenet hasvext&?2,412,149 in vendor financing and
$183,845 in member fees to establish and suppostitvice. Most of these funds were
expended developing and deploying the organizaioaie network within Lawrence and
providing support services for paying members.

Going forward, Freenet seeks to finance its owmwagkt expansion through long term debt
issued by a local lender. With assistance in seguhis debt, the interest rate can be brought
down and the difference between the market ratdl@chunicipally secured rate can be used to
provide free services for children within the commty

Local Lender

60 Months Payment
12.5% $110,656/Mo A
Freenet
Difference
— $57,277/Mo >
$4.9M
>_ 120 Months Payment
Guarantee 5.5% $531379/M0

City of Lawrence

Figure 19: Freenet-Kids is made possible by lower@the loan Interest rate with a municipal guarantee

7.2. Community Wireless Communications Co. Proposal

Since Lawrence Freenet itself is primarily a pukevice organization, technical fulfilment and
development has been contracted to the organizatoimary vendor, Community Wireless
Communications, Co. This vendor has shown a wjiiess to participate in the project
financially by providing $2.4M in financing duririts first 2 years of operations.

To keep the costs of deploying the equipment reguior Freenet-Kids under control, Lawrence
Freenet, Inc. requested a price fixed bid from Comity Wireless. This bid appears in its
entirety in Appendix A. The total dollar amounttbfs bid is $5,449,356 over 18 months. The
bid also sets out milestones for when key taskd t@ée accomplished by Community Wireless
in order to release payment.
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7.3. Long Term Viability

As it approaches its third birthday, the LawrenoeelRet Project continues to become stronger
financially. Beginning with a single member in Aigg of 2005, the project now serves over
1,100 paying members throughout the City of Laweesied beyond.

The organization’s long term financial plan is lhse continued expansion of its member base
in Lawrence coupled with improved service to erigtmembers.

Community Wireless Communications Co. has indic#tetl the organization can continue to
grow its subscribers at a rapid rate (225 new meshinenth) given a continued financial
commitment to marketing.

Historic financial statements for the past two geae included as Appendix C. Appendix D
contains detailed 5 year financial projections.

These projections are based on the organizatiosisrit success with member growth. Figure
20 shows the results of the project’s marketingréfffor Q2 and Q3.

Marketing Effectivhess

20,000

18,000 P

16,000

14,000

12,000 ~

=&— Monthy Service Sales

10,000 - :
== Marketing Expenses

Dollars

8,000 -
6,000 - /
4,000 /

2,000 ~

4 5 6 7 8 9
Month (2007)

Figure 20: For every $60 spent on marketing Lawrere Freenet adds a new paid member.

Overall revenue growth during 2007 was significafigure 21 shows that the total revenue
growth for the year was greater than 500%.
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Paid Member Revenue (2007)
[2 Month Running Average]
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Figure 21: Revenue growth for 2007 was 500%

8. About Lawrence Freenet

The Lawrence Freenet Project is one of the firsticipal wireless broadband projects in the
Midwest. The goal of the project is to build a eommity in which everyone can access the
Internet, anywhere, anytime, free of charge.

To work toward this goal, the organization hasatiy focused on providing free access to low
income families. The organization is now expandig service to include every child in
Lawrence. By making this important educationabtgse available to children everywhere,
Freenet hopes to benefit the entire community.

Lawrence Freenet, Inc. is a 501c(4) not-for-prodimpany that works with city government,
service providers and members of the communitytthér the project’s mission. The not-for-
profit is governed by a board of directors consgf members of the community that are
interested in making the Internet available to gore, everywhere, regardless of income.

Over time it is the goal of Lawrence Freenet toaaxpits service to provide broadband wireless
to rural and urban communities across the Midwest.
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Appendix A: Community Wireless Communications Co.
Proposal
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Freenet-Kids Network Expansion Proposal

December 31, 2007

Community Wireless Communications Co. Contact: Joshua Montgomery

4105 W. & st. President

P.O. Box 3532 joshua.montgomery@civicwifi.com
Lawrence, KS 66046 Ph. (785) 371-4214 Ext 8001
http://www.civicwifi.com Fx. (785) 331-2086

Cl. (785) 840-6155
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1. General Overview

In response to requests from Lawrence Freenet, Qmnmunity Wireless Communications Co.
has developed the following proposal for expandstevark access in Lawrence Kansas.

Due to the large number of new members proposedwrence Freenet’s “Freenet-Kids”
initiative, CWC'’s technical staff has specifiedignsficant expansion of Lawrence Freenets
network backbone. The staff has also indicatetlatiaquate coverage for the proposed user
base will require further expansion of the projeatsess point placement.

This proposal is a general outline of what it walke to provide the level of coverage and service
outlined in the Freenet-Kids proposal submitted_&wrence Freenet, Inc.

This document serves as a letter of intent to @ntera contract for delivery of the specified
network infrastructure. Upon contract award, CWIC enter into a performance agreement for
delivering the specified services in the specifieteframe.

2. Progress to Date

Over the past two years Community Wireless Comnaitimns Co. has developed one of the
largest mesh networks in the world. By leveraghmgpower of open source software and
providing innovative technical, marketing and pabglations solutions, CWC has been able to
expand Lawrence Freenet’'s paid member base frarthes 50 to over 1,000, while
simultaneously expanding network coverage frommglsiaccess point to 550 access points
deployed throughout the community.

During this time CWC has also been able to proewker $2.4M in financing in order to make
the network possible.

The organization has also made extensive techreabgontributions to the project by
developing a core software infrastructure that &sgateal time tracking of network issues,
comprehensive customer information management asihdéss management tools that are
second to none.

Total core network capacity during this time hapanded from 7Mbps to over 100Mbps an
increase of 1,400% over a two year timeframe. hatibdividual member level, members have
also seen significant increases in network avditgpreliability and throughput.

The success of the network rollout in Lawrencedias made expansion of the project possible,

with CWC signing its first expansion community, HoNewton, Kansas, and planning its first
out of town rollout for spring 2008.

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046 http://lwww.civicwifi.com Ph. (785) 371-4214 1
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3. Project Overview

Lawrence Freenet has requested that CWC continmepi@ve the Lawrence, Kansas network
by increasing coverage from its current 60% leee3% over a period of 18 months. The
organization has also requested that CWC increasenetwork throughput by 300% over the
same time period.

To accomplish this goal CWC will need to installadditional 400 mesh radios within the
Lawrence community and replace the current wiretess with a core network composed of
fiber-optic cable.

4. Budget

The total budget for the project over 18 months5149,356. This represents payment for the
installation of 400 additional mesh radios, 25.8ddiof fiber-optic cable, installation of
switching and routing equipment as well as opegadind installation expenses.

Description Quantity Unit Price Total Price
Mesh Radios 400 2,100 840,000
Fiberoptic Cable 25.6 76,699 1,963,501
Switching Equipment 1 209,500 209,500
Installation Costs

Year 1 1 474,000 474,000
Year 2 1 483,500 483,500
Sub-total Installation 3,970,501

Operating Costs

Year 1 1 839,742 839,742
Year 2 1 639,113 639,113
Sub-total Operating 1,478,855
Total Project Cost 5,449,356

4.1. Access Points

Access points will be installed in areas of the oamity where additional coverage or
connectivity is needed. After looking at existih@ta demands and interest from local
neighborhoods CWC'’s technical staff have recommeradiglitional radios be added to various
sections. The current proposal includes 400 amditimesh radios, which will increase
coverage by 73% from 550 access points to 950 squeats.

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046 http://lwww.civicwifi.com Ph. (785) 371-4214 2
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Additional Coverage
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Figure 1. Lawrence Freenet Section Map

As always Radios will be installed by trained pssienal crews in compliance with Lawrence
Freenet's agreements with Westar Energy and theo€ltawrence.

4.2. Fiber-optic Cable

To better service Freenet members and provide sidoethe “Freenet-Kids” project the Freenet
network will require a fiber-optic ring to act abackbone. This ring will allow the staff to
directly connect 80 to 100 mesh nodes to the né&tWw@Ps. It will also significantly increase
the reliability of connections to the various towées throughout the community.

Since the fiber-optic cable runs are outside of C8\fitimary expertise, the organization has
solicited bids from established fiber providersWC plans to primarily sub-contract this work,

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046 http://www.civicwifi.com Ph. (785) 371-4214
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but will purchase the equipment and training nemgs® maintain the infrastructure once itis in
place.
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Figure 2: Proposed Fiber-optic Cable Routes
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Table 1: Fiber-Optic Network Proposal

o

N S

Start End Distance (Miles) Cost
Core Network

1462 US-40 6 W 6th St. 15 48,416
6 W 6th St. 6th St. & lowa St. 1.4 45,881
6th St. & lowa St. 6th St. & Wakarusa Dr. 2.5] 236,720
6th St. & lowa St. 23rd St. & lowa St. 2 65,488
6th St. & Wakarusa Dr. 23rd St. & Wakarusa Dr. 2] 190,096
23rd St. & Wakarusa Dr. 23rd St. & lowa St. 2.5] 236,720
23rd St. & lowa St. 23rd St. & Harper Ave. 25 80,960
Bob Billings Pkwy. & Wakarusa Dr. Bob Billings Pkwy & lowa St. 2.5] 236,720
23rd St. & lowa St. 33rd St. & lowa St. 1.5 140,072
6 W 6th St. 23rd St. & Massachusetts St. 2.1} 199,060
19th St. & lowa St. 19th St. & Harper Ave. 2.5] 237,520
Sub-Total Core 23 1,717,653
Spur Sites

3608 W. 6th St. 6th St. Tower 0.125 13,160
600 Mississippi St. 1200 Mississippi St. 0.6 55,088
23rd St. & Harper Ave. 2100 Harper Ave. 0.125 13,160
Bob Billings Pkwy & Kasold Dr. 1800 Kasold 0.5 46,640
2300 Wakarusa Dr. 4924 Stoneback PI 0.125 13,160
600 Lawrence Ave 200 Lawrence Ave 1 91,480
lowa St. & Oxford Rd. Water Tower Park 0.125 13,160
Sub-Total Spur 2.6 245,848
Total Additional Fiber 25.6

Total Cost 1,963,501

4.3. Switching Equipment

To provide adequate connectivity to the variousssi#terved by the planned fiber-optic cable
installation, the organization needs to installtsining equipment at various locations along the
fiber-optic routes. Preliminary estimates indiciduat the organization needs to install 24
routers/switches and 5 additional servers to hatdlenticipated network load.

Since it is likely that some changes will be madardy the course of the installation requiring
additional routing/switching equipment an allowan&50,000 has been added to defer these

costs.

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046

http://lwww.civicwifi.com

Ph. (785) 371-4214
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Table 2: Switching Equipment
Core Equipment
Routers & Switches
C5750G-12S 24 4,500f 108,000
GLC-JH-SM 288 150 43,200
PA-GE 1 1,150 1,150
LX GBIC 1 100 100
SX GBIC 1 50 50
Subtotal Routers & Switches 152,500
Servers 5 1,400 7,000
Other Infrastructure 1 50,000 50,000
Total Core Equipment 209,500

4.4. Direct Costs

The direct costs associated with the project haenbimited to additional personnel salaries.
Benefits, insurance, taxes, vehicle expenses drat ahcillary expenses are presented along

with operating costs.

4.4.1. Direct Costs Years 1 &

2

The target start date for this portion of the Lavae Freenet project is March 1. During the first
year the organization plans to allocate the follayull time staff to the project. Some of these

staff members will come on to the project at défgrtimes depending on the need.

As always, CWC 100% of CWC'’s full time staff aragan accordance with the local
community’s living wage. Staffers also receivdyfydaid health and dental benefits.

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046

http://lwww.civicwifi.com

Ph. (785) 371-4214
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Table 3: Direct Installation Costs Year 1

Month 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12|Monthly Salary |Total Salary
Position
Call Center 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 3 3 2,000, 44,000
Program Manager 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 6,000, 60,000
School Technicians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 2,500 12,500
Technicians 0 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3,000 120,000
Network Administrator 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 5,000 50,000
Engineering 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 5,000 45,000
Existing Staff 0 0 7,500 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 142,500
Total 2,000 8,000 26,500 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 51,500 51,500 51,500 51,500 51,500 474,000
Table 4: Direct Installation Costs Year 2
Month 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9|Monthly Salary |Total Salary
Position
Call Center 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2,000 54,000
Program Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 6,000 54,000
School Technicians 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 5 5 2,500 42,500
Technicians 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3,000 108,000
Network Administrator 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 5,000 45,000
Engineering 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 5,000 45,000
Existing Staff 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 135,000
Total 51,500 51,500 51,500 51,500 51,500 51,500 51,500 61,500 61,500 483,500
P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046 http://lwww.civicwifi.com Ph. (785) 371-4214
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4.5. Operating Costs

In addition to building out the additional infrastture needed to complete the Freenet-
Kids project, CWC will continue to maintain the sting network and provide services
for Lawrence Freenet members.

For the construction period (March 2008 to Augu1® CWC proposes a price fixed
payment for these operating costs. Costs areeativas follows:

Year 1 Operating Costs

$839’742 O Personnel
Printing & Recruiting Costs Telephone B Accounting
0 .
Reproduction 3% 1% Travel O Automobllc.e Expenses
0% 1% OBank Service Charges
Professional Utilities Winfrastructure Supplies
Development 1% O Interest Expense
1% B Internet Access
Postage OlInsurance
0% B Legal Fees
Office Supplies Personnel B Marketing
1% 0 . .
Marketing 48% O Office Supplies
9 O Postage
20% Legal Fees i 9 .
1% B Printing & Reproduction
Insurc'Jance Accounting B Professional Development
Internet Access 0% B Rent
% Automobile M Recruiting Costs
Interest Expense Infrastructure| Bank Service Expenses E Telephone
1% Supplies Charges 2%
3% 0% 0 Tr_a.v_e !
O Utilities
P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046 http://lwww.civicwifi.com Ph. (785) 371-4214
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Year 2 Operating Costs
$639,113 O Personnel

Rent Telephone Utilities
1%

Printing &
Reproduction

0%
Postage
0%
Office Supplies
1%
Personnel
43%
Marketing

24% Accounting
0%
Automobile

Expenses
2%

Legal Fees
1%

Insurance

0% Bank Service

B Accounting

O Automobile Expenses
O Bank Service Charges
B Infrastructure Supplies
O Interest Expense

B Internet Access
Olnsurance

H Legal Fees

B Marketing

O Office Supplies

O Postage

M Printing & Reproduction
B Rent

Internet Access Infrastructure Charges . Te.lt-a.phone
Interest Expense Supplies 0% B Utilities
12%
1% 3%

5. Schedule

The proposed schedule for the project encompaksgsetiod from March 1, 2008 to
August 30, 2009. Since schedule performance igilgaafluenced by approvals from
city government, exact installation dates for theirf-optic cable are not attainable at this
time.

Installation for 90% mesh radio equipment (360 Bapwill take place within 4 months
of the project start date. The remaining 10% ballinstalled throughout the remaining
14 months as pole attachment standards are readtied/estar Energy.

Beta testing for the Freenet-Kids network will coemue on August 1, 2008 with a group
of 1,000 children. This program will allow CWCfidly implement the content filtering
technology and develop Freenet-Kids specific suppacedures.

Total project completion is scheduled for Augus2Q09, when the Freenet-Kids network
is opened up for every child in the community weainder 18 years of age.

6. Ongoing Costs

In addition to Lawrence, Kansas, CWC will be bunlgliout networks in North Newton,

Kansas. The company is also in talks with sevatadr large communities regarding the
P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046 http://lwww.civicwifi.com Ph. (785) 371-4214 9
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installation of community oriented network infragtture. CWC'’s goal in Lawrence,
Kansas is to develop technical and business sokitlmat can be applied to these
expansion communities. The company also usesdihednce, Kansas network as an
example of what is possible in other communiti@sning to the various successes of
the Lawrence Freenet Project as examples to benfed.

This is why CWC has been willing to provide $2.4Mfinancing to Lawrence Freenet
over the course of a 2 year period. Continuinthis spirit of partnership, CWC
proposes the following solution to ongoing costseothe network infrastructure is
complete in August of 2009.

As part of this contract, CWC shall guarantee th®3$3,500 in debt from a local lender.
CWC shall be the secondary guarantor and shakdgmonsible for the debt service in the
event that LFN cannot make payments. Such guaswate contingent on the City of
Lawrence taking the roll of fourth guarantor, resgible for the debt service in the
unlikely event that both Lawrence Freenet, Inc. @adhmunity Wireless
Communications Co. or Joshua Montgomery cannot riakeayments.

With delivery of the network anticipated on Aug@8t 2009, CWC and Lawrence
Freenet shall enter into a maintenance agreemefeptember 1, 2009. Said agreement
shall span 102 months following the delivery of toatract and shall have the following
general clauses:

CWC shall be paid on a performance basis, withnpember compensation determined
by the total number of paying members using thef@enetwork in any given month.

This performance based pay acts as an incentiv@WC to increase the number of paid
members on the network, while simultaneously enguthat Lawrence Freenet, Inc. has
revenue sufficient to pay its ongoing expenses.

 CWC shall be compensated on a per-member basisdangdo the following

chart.

Total Members Per Member Charge
0 - 3,000 0

3,001 - 4,000 3.98

4,001 - 5,000 8.98

5,001 - 6,000 11.98

6,001 - 7,000 13.98

7,001 - 10,000 14.98

10,001 - 11,000 15.48

11,001 - 12,000 15.98

12,001 - 20,000 16.98

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046 http://lwww.civicwifi.com Ph. (785) 371-4214 10
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* CWOC shall have the right to deploy, promote andntaén any tier 2 services that
might be launched on the Lawrence Freenet netwStlch services include, but
are not limited to, online backups, desktop compsiport and video
surveillance services.

7. Equipment Replacement

CWC shall warranty all installed equipment for {&0) years from the original
installation date. Said warranty shall cover glliipment failures related to the
manufacture, installation and/or day to day usthefequipment. CWC shall not be
responsible for equipment destroyed by an act af &wl requires Lawrence Freenet,
Inc. to carry insurance adequate to replace equiphost in this event.

8. Subscriber Performance

Based on the sales performance of the Lawrencen€reetwork since the launch of the
mesh networking service in May of 2007, CWC is aerfiit that the organization can
obtain a member growth rate of 225 members/montexipgnding $12,500/Mo in
marketing and advertising.

Marketing Effectivness

20,000

18,000 Wad

16,000 A

14,000 A

12,000 A

=&— Monthy Service Sales

10,000 A .
- Marketing Expenses

Dollars

8,000 4

6,000 -~ /
4,000 /
4 5

2,000

Month (2007)

Figure 3: Recurring Revenue Growth as Function of M arketing Expenses Q2-Q3 2007

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046 http://lwww.civicwifi.com Ph. (785) 371-4214 11
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By increasing this marketing from $12,500 to $2P,50July of 2008, the company
believes that the growth rate can be increased@m&w members each month. In
response to Lawrence Freenet’s request for seaetdted to subscriber growth, CWC is
willing to guarantee subscriber growth over therseiwof the 18 month contract using the
following arrangement:

» If the paid membership of Lawrence Freenet, Inbelow 6,495 when the final
contract is delivered, CWC will pay Lawrence Fraehe. $60 for each member
below 6,495.

» If the paid membership of Lawrence Freenet, Irbisve 6,495 when the final
contract is delivered, Lawrence Freenet, Inc. paly CWC $60 for each member
above 6,495.

9. Payment Schedule
CWC proposes the following milestone based payreemédule.

Milestone | Date | Dollar Amount
Contract Award March 1, 2008 2,000,000
Fiber Plan Complete June 1, 2008 750,000
Fiber Plant Under Way September 1, 2008 750,000
Mesh Radio Installation Complete December 18200 750,000
12.25 Miles of Fiber Complete March 1, 2009 060,
Project Completion August 30,2009 449,356

Project Total | | 5,449,356

10. About CWC

Community Wireless Communications is a Kansas Gatmm whose primary purpose is
to provide Midwestern communities with wireless dband services including data,
video and media.

10.1. Company Summary

Community Wireless Communications Co. (CWC) is anitipal wireless service
provider delivering Internet access and other dataices to Midwest communities. The
organization began construction of its networkanuary of 2006 and completed the first
phase of its city wide WiFi network in May of 2007.

CWC has built this network in partnership with iNestar Energy, and Lawrence
Freenet, Inc., a non-profit partner. The netwavmles an umbrella under which users

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046 http://lwww.civicwifi.com Ph. (785) 371-4214 12
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The company believes that a target of 10,000 mesnbighin the Lawrence market is
achievable within two years of network completiorhis is roughly 12% of the total
market in Lawrence. To achieve this goal, compeffiyrts will initially be focused on
the 25,423 University of Kansas students that ogdigwrence.

This target is similar to the target of Telescapen@unications in Tempe Arizona where
the company, which currently serves 130,000 ugdass to sign up 10,000 subscribers
in the next year.

In addition to signing up individual customers, lrance Freenet is currently in
discussions with the University of Kansas regardirgan to provide service for the
entire student body as a paid amenity.

CWC has completed its first municipal WiFi netwankd currently has approximately
88,000 potential subscribers under coverage. @uascomplishments include:

* Over 550 WiFi radios installed at locations throoghthe community.

* Over 3,000 apartments under contract for WiFi ilteian

» Seven core tower sites completed allowing for Wigdle installations city wide

* A 5-year renewable right of way agreement with Rddewton, home of Bethel
College.

» Assembled a core staff of talented, highly motidateechnicians and business
professionals

10.2. Current Investment

CWC has invested $2.4 Million to construct the Brgsinfrastructure and anticipates
raising an additional $3.25 Million to build netvkgrin expansion communities and
market its services.

Key investors in Community Wireless Communicati@us include the Kansas

Technology Enterprise Corporation and Financiaféasionals at leading financial
institutions such as Sutter Securities, Lehmant#nstand Banc of America Securities.

P.O. Box 3532, Lawrence, KS 66046 http://lwww.civicwifi.com Ph. (785) 371-4214 13
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A Cuni’r Connection

Lawrence Freenet is a non-profit organization that seeks to bring the internct to everyone,
regardless of income. As a non-profit, the company has built relationships with a variety of
government and private industry organizations.

Freenet is seeking a for profit partner to provide services to the company to further its goals. The
partner should be prepared to:

1. Develop and finance a citywide WiFi mesh network rollout.
2. Support the network going forward.
3. Provide and finance sales, marketing and billing services.

The company is currently seeking letters of interest for potential partners. These letters should
include:

1. The name of the company.
2. Past experience with municipal wireless projects.

Upon execution of a non disclosure agreement companies should also be prepared to submit
current corporate financial statements including a P&L, Balance Sheet and Cash flow statement.

Letters may be sent to:

Adam Mansfield
President

Lawrence Freenet, Inc.
P.O. Box 3532
Lawrence, KS 66046

Or submitted via e-mail to:

contact@lawrencefreenet.org

P.C. Box 3532, Lawrence, Kansas 66046
{785) 331-2086
hitp:/imww.fawrencefreenet.org
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and financial services

AUDIT REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Lawrence Freenet Inc.;

I have audited the enclosed statement of assets, liabilities, and equity of
Lawrence Freenet Inc. a nonprofit organization as of December 31, 2006 and the
related statement of revenues and expenses for the year then ended.

The audit consisted of examining documents and files, asking questions and
compiling Quick Books reports. The bank account balances were verified with
the Quick Books balance. Accounts receivable was reviewed. Accounts payable
balances were verified with the paper file provided by the company. The only
fixed assets owned by the company were donated computers.

The nonprofit organization prepares its financial statements on the modified cash
basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
generally accepted accounting principles.

In my opinion, the financial statements included in this report present fairly in all
material respects the assets, liabilities and equity of Lawrence Freenet Inc. as of
December 31, 2006.

Kw«a Ao

Kristy Teska
Enrolled Agent

2708 Freedom Hill Ct., Lawrence, KS 66047
(785) 843-8687
ktax@sunflower.com Page 1




4:37 PM Lawrence Freenet Inc

04/03/07 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2006
Dec 31, 06
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Checking Account - Central 2,057.86
Douglas County 732.19
Total Checking/Savings 2,790.05
Accounts Receivable
1200 - Accounts Recsivable 2,360.49
Total Accounts Racelvable 2,360.49
Other Current Assets
1499 - Undeposited Funds 1,083.78
Total Other Current Assets w
Total Current Assels 6,234.32
Other Assets
Computers, Donated 900.00
Total Other Asssts 200.00
TOTAL ASSETS 7,134.32
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabllities
Current Liabllities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable 13,480.44
Total Acgounts Payable 13,480.44
Cther Current Liabilities
Refundable Advances
Loan From Andrew Brown 150.00
Loan From Joshua Montgomery -386.35
Loan From Kris Adair -0;_6_0_ :
Total Refundable Advances -246.95
2100 - Payrofl Liabilities 695.45
Tota! Other Current Liabilities 448,50
Total Current Liabilities 13,928.94
Total Liabilities 13,928.04
Equity
1110 - Net Assets 3,024.90
Net Income -9,819.52
Total Equity -5,794,62
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 7,134.32

Page 2




Accrual Basis

Lawrence Freenet Inc

Profit & Loss

January through December 2006

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4030 * Contributions Income
4070 « Unrestricted

Total 4030 - Contributions Income

4180 - Miscellaneous Income
4170 - Program Fees
Equipment Sales
installation
Internet Service
Labor
4170 - Program Fees - Other

Total 4170 - Program Fees
4190 - Reimbursed Expenses

Total Income
Cost of Goods Sold

6000 - Cost of Goods Sold

Total COGS

Gross Profit
Expensa

Seminars
4040 - Reconciliation Discrepancies
8110 - Automabile Expense
6120 - Bank Service Charges
6180 - Insurance
8185 - Liability Insurance
6180 - Insurance - Other

Totat 6180 - Insurance

6200 - Interest Expense
6230 - Licenses and Permits
6240 - Miscellaneous
6250 - Postage and Delivery
6260 - Printing and Reproduction
6270 - Professlonal Fees

6655 - Consuiting

Total 6270 - Professional Fees

6250 - Rent
6340 - Telephone
Mobile Phone

Total 6340 - Telephone

6350 - Travel & Ent
8370+ Meals
6380 + Travel

Total 6350 - Travel & Ent

6380 - Utiiities

6550 - Office Supplies

8560 - Payroll Exponses

€670 * Program Expense
Access Point Installation Subs
Computer Donations
[nternet Service
Network Infrastructure
Warranty

Total 6670 - Program Expense

8770 « Supplies
6780 - Marketing
6790 - Office

Jan - Dec (6

2,185.00
2,185.00
81.89
8,768.51
29,008.39
20,170.35

381.25
25.00

58,3563.560
-89.11

60,5631.28

8,868.12

8,868.12

51,663.16

200.00
-0.01
40.34

1,663.11

200.00
485.00
1,385.00

9.51
42.00
132,63
186,14
72.45

260.50

260.50
30.00

456.34
456.34

358.10
483,80

841.90

12,66
221.34
8.165.26

30,285.28
600.00
15,781.99
480.88
268.75

47,416.90

333.90
256.00

Page 3




Lawrence FreenetInc
Profit & Loss

Accruat Basls January through December 2006
Jan - Dec 08
Total 6770 - Supplies L 358.90
Total Expense 61,384.89
Net Ordinary fncome -8,721.73

Other Income/Expsnse
Other Income

7030 - Other Income 389.44

Total Gther income 380.44
Qther Expense

8010 - Other Expenses . 487.23

Total Other Expense 487.23

Net Other Income -97.79

Net Income -9,819.52

Page 4




LAWRENCE FREENET INC.

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2006

Notes to Financial Statements

Lawrence Freenet Inc. is a nonprofit service organization. Its mission is to make
internet access available to everyone in Lawrence, KS.

Note 1 - Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable transactions are downloaded from two sources and checks
are entered as received. Some customers signup and pay their account on-
line.

Note 2 - Assets:
During 2006, the only fixed assets owned by the company were donated

computers as reflected on the Balance Sheet. All other assets were borrowed or
personal property of the employee.

Note 3 — Modified Cash Basis of Accounting:

The financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting,
which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally accepted
accounting principles. This basis of accounting differs from generally accepted
accounting principles by not tracing accounts receivable and its subsidiary ledger
and not accruing accounts receivable and accounts payable.

Note 4 — Related Party Transactions:

Employees and Board Members have loaned or advanced funds to the
organization and the funds have been tracked.

Page 5




Note 5 — Separation of Duties:

The organization is a small nonprofit organization and had one employee in
2006. Due to the limitations of staff, the one employee was responsible for all
financial transactions. As the company grows, the financial duties need to be
shared so that one person does not have sole responsibility of the receipt
process or the payable process.

Note 5 — Income Taxes

The organization is an nonprofit organization and is exempt from Federal income
taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3).

Page 6
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Appendix D: 5 Year Financial Projections

Note: 2007 Financial statements represent actysdrektures. Lawrence Freenet’'s 2007
financial statements are currently undergoing aside audit to ensure accuracy. Audited 2007
financial statements will be available in mid-Fedmu
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Freenet

2007 Profit & Loss Statement

January 2%, 2008

REVENUE Jan-07 Feb-07 Mar-07 Apr-07 May-07 Jun-07 Jul-07 Aug-07 Sep-07 Oct-07 Nov-07
Equipment Sales 2,360 11 122 17 308 304 1,772 3,896 2,788 2,593 3,296
Other Income 0 0 26 18,455 5 408 263 449 511 546 594
Services

Internet Services 3,857 3,477 2,274 -60 4,666 9,116 10,761 15,037 16,567 17,905 17,866

Installation & Labor -113 0 0 0 -100 200 1,065 2,070 410 10 345
Contributions

Unrestricted Contributions 0 0 -704 17 427 228 0 0 1,000 0 0

Restricted Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 350 0 0
TOTAL REVENUE 6,105 3,488 1,719 18,429 5,307 10,257 13,860 21,452 21,625 21,053 22,100
EXPENSES
VARIABLE EXPENSES
Reimbursed Expenses 0 0 0 15 -40 -1,920 -240 0 0 0 0
Hardware Costs 248 21 112 0 361 167 1,404 6,237 8,717 7,930 8,817
Installation Costs -100 0 0 0 8,835 6,294 100 750 0 0 0
Internet Services 1,880 1,590 1,706 0 4,469 7,676 9,656 14,465 20,768 27,006 38,650
Total COGS 2,028 1,611 1,818 15 13,625 12,217 10,920 21,452 29,485 34,936 47,467
GROSS PROFIT 4,077 1,877 -99 18,415 -8,318 -1,960 2,940 0 -7,860 -13,883 -25,366
FIXED EXPENSES
Payroll Expenses 801 3,840 4,075 3,779 6,610 7,338 6,686 6,707 11,043 4,506 0

Sub Total-Personnel 801 3,840 4,075 3,779 6,610 7,338 6,686 6,707 11,043 4,506 0
Accounting 0 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,600 0
Bad Debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bank Service Charges 357 432 232 196 -608 415 195 953 824 752 665
Dues & Subscriptions 60 0 0 0 0 40 0 0 393 393 0
Insurance 0 0 0 0 830 830 0 393 739 180 180
Legal Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Licenses and Permits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 401 0 319
Marketing 180 79 93 50 20 0 480 608 460 0 0
Meals and Entertainment 0 59 81 91 65 84 36 0 0 0 0
Misc. Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 641 0 0 12 0 0
Office Supplies 460 250 209 309 29 87 1,123 317 37 43 0
Postage 22 0 0 48 279 0 0 48 0 0 8
Printing & Reproduction 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Professional Development 0 0 180 0 0 0 59 0 0 0 0
Rent 40 0 0 0 0 400 0 800 0 0 0
Sales Tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Telephone 0 0 90 106 0 0 64 0 0 0 0
Travel 119 0 227 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL FIXED EXPENSES 2,039 4,673 5,336 4,580 7,224 9,835 8,643 9,827 13,909| 7,474 1,172
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,067 6,284 7,154 4,595 20,849 22,052 19,563 31,278 43,394 42,410 48,639
OTHER INCOME -66 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PRE TAX INCOME 1,971 -2,797 -5,435 13,834 -15,542 -11,795 -5,702 -9,827 -21,769 -21,357 -26,539
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2008 Profit & Loss Projection

REVENUE Jan-08 Feb-08 Mar-08 Apr-08 May-08 Jun-08 Jul-08 Aug-08 Sep-08 Oct-08 Nov-08
Equipment Sales 0 0 3,000 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 6,800 6,800 6,800
Services

Internet Services 22,187 22,187 25,691 30,945 36,200 41,455 46,710 51,965 59,906 67,846 75,787

Installation & Labor 0 0 750 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,700 1,700 1,700
TOTAL REVENUE 22,187 22,187 29,441 36,570 41,825 47,080 52,335 57,590 68,406 76,346 84,287
EXPENSES
VARIABLE EXPENSES
Hardware Costs 0 0 3,000 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 6,800 6,800 6,800
Installation Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Internet Services 20,289 20,289 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total COGS | 20,289 20,289 3,000 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 6,800 6,800 6,800
GROSS PROFIT 1,898 1,898 26,441 32,070 37,325 42,580 47,835 53,090 61,606 69,546 77,487
FIXED EXPENSES
Payroll Expenses 1,200 1,200 1,200 5,700 10,200 10,200 10,200 10,200 10,200 10,200 10,200

Sub Total-Personnel 1,200 1,200 1,200 5,700 10,200 10,200 10,200 10,200 10,200 10,200 10,200
Accounting 300 0 0 300 0 0 300 0 0 300 0
Bank Service Charges 1,109 1,109 1,472 1,829 2,091 2,354 2,617 2,879 3,420 3,817 4,214
Insurance 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180
Interest Expense 0 0 0 22,458 22,317 22,176 22,034 21,891 21,747 21,603 21,459
Legal Fees 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Office Supplies 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241
Professional Development 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50
TOTAL FIXED EXPENSES ‘ 3,180 2,880 3,243 30,857 35,179 35,301 35,721 35,541 35,938 36,491 36,444
TOTAL EXPENSES 23,469 23,169 6,243 35,357 39,679 39,801 40,221 40,041 42,738 43,291 43,244
OTHER INCOME

Interest Income 0 0 0 0 9,265 6,708 6,667 6,644 4,139 4,158 4,203

Other Income -66 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL OTHER INCOME -66 0 0 0 9,265 6,708 6,667 6,644 4,139 4,158 4,203
PRE TAX INCOME -1,348 -982 23,198 1,213 11,411 13,988 18,781 24,193 29,806 37,213 45,246
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2009 Profit & Loss Projection

January 2%, 2008

REVENUE Jan-09 Feb-09 Mar-09 Apr-09 May-09 Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09
Equipment Sales 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 -13,140 6,800 6,800
Services

Internet Services 91,668 99,609 107,550 115,490 123,431 131,372 139,313 147,253 160,149 169,790 179,430

Installation & Labor 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 -3,285 1,700 1,700
TOTAL REVENUE 100,168 108,109 116,050 123,990 131,931 139,872 147,813 155,753 143,724 178,290 187,930
EXPENSES
VARIABLE EXPENSES
Hardware Costs 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 -13,140 6,800 6,800
Installation Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -3,285 1,700 1,700
Internet Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 67,663 71,736 88,465
Total COGS 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 6,800 51,238 80,236 96,965
GROSS PROFIT 93,368 101,309 109,250 117,190 125,131 133,072 141,013 148,953 92,486 98,054 90,965
FIXED EXPENSES
Payroll Expenses 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220

Sub Total-Personnel 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220 11,220
Accounting 300 0 0 300 0 0 300 0 0 300 0
Bank Service Charges 5,008 5,405 5,802 6,200 6,597 6,994 7,391 7,788 7,186 8,914 9,397
Insurance 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180
Interest Expense 21,167 21,020 20,873 20,725 20,576 20,427 20,277 20,126 19,975 19,822 19,669
Legal Fees 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Office Supplies 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241
Professional Development 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50
TOTAL FIXED EXPENSES 38,266 38,216 38,466 39,015 38,963 39,211 39,758 39,704 38,952 40,827 40,856
TOTAL EXPENSES 45,066 45,016 45,266 45,815 45,763 46,011 46,558 46,504 90,190 121,063 137,822
OTHER INCOME

Interest Income 1,849 1,952 80 66 78 116 344 100 168 248 303

Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,849 1,952 80 66 78 116 344 100 168 248 303
PRE TAX INCOME 56,951 63,093 70,784 78,175 86,168 93,861 101,254 109,249 53,534 57,226 50,109
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2010 Profit & Loss Projection

January 2%, 2008

REVENUE Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10
Equipment Sales 6,800 5,660 5,100 4,540 3,960 3,400 2,840 2,260 1,700 1,140 560
Services

Internet Services 198,712 206,736 213,967 220,403 226,018 230,838 234,864 238,069 240,479 242,095 242,889

Installation & Labor 1,700 1,415 1,275 1,135 990 850 710 565 425 285 140
TOTAL REVENUE 207,212 213,811 220,342 226,078 230,968 235,088 238,414 240,894 242,604 243,520 243,589
EXPENSES
VARIABLE EXPENSES
Hardware Costs 6,800 5,660 5,100 4,540 3,960 3,400 2,840 2,260 1,700 1,140 560
Installation Costs 1,700 1,415 1,275 1,135 990 850 710 565 425 285 140
Internet Services 104,980 109,219 113,039 116,440 119,406 121,952 124,079 125,772 127,045 127,899 128,319
Total COGS 113,480 116,294 119,414 122,115 124,356 126,202 127,629 128,597 129,170 129,324 129,019
GROSS PROFIT 93,732 97,517 100,928 103,964 106,612 108,886 110,785 112,297 113,433 114,196 114,570
FIXED EXPENSES
Payroll Expenses 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342

Sub Total-Personnel 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342 12,342
Accounting 300 0 0 300 0 0 300 0 0 300 0
Bank Service Charges 10,361 10,691 11,017 11,304 11,548 11,754 11,921 12,045 12,130 12,176 12,179
Insurance 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180
Interest Expense 19,362 19,207 19,051 18,894 18,737 18,579 18,421 18,262 18,102 17,941 17,779
Legal Fees 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Office Supplies 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241
Professional Development 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50
TOTAL FIXED EXPENSES 42,935 42,810 42,981 43,411 43,198 43,246 43,554 43,219 43,145 43,330 42,871
TOTAL EXPENSES 156,415 159,104 162,395 165,525 167,554 169,448 171,184 171,816 172,315 172,654 171,890
OTHER INCOME

Interest Income 97 167 246 1 97 201 310 90 208 327 448

Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 97 167 246 1 97 201 310 90 208 327 448
PRE TAX INCOME 50,894 54,707 57,947 60,553 63,414 65,640 67,231 69,077 70,289 70,866 71,699

68



Freenet

Kﬁ January 2%, 2008

2011 Profit & Loss Projection

REVENUE Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11
Equipment Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Services

Internet Services 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889

Installation & Labor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL REVENUE 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889 242,889
EXPENSES
VARIABLE EXPENSES
Hardware Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Installation Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Internet Services 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319
Total COGS | 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319 128,319
GROSS PROFIT 114,570 114,570 114,570 114,570 114,570 114,570 114,570 114,570 114,570 114,570 114,570
FIXED EXPENSES
Payroll Expenses 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576

Sub Total-Personnel 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576 13,576
Accounting 300 0 0 300 0 0 300 0 0 300 0
Bank Service Charges 12,144 12,144 12,144 12,144 12,144 12,144 12,144 12,144 12,144 12,144 12,144
Insurance 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180 180
Interest Expense 17,454 17,290 17,126 16,961 16,795 16,628 16,460 16,292 16,123 15,953 15,783
Legal Fees 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Office Supplies 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241 241
Professional Development 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50
TOTAL FIXED EXPENSES | 44,045 43,581 43,417 43,552 43,086 42,919 43,051 42,583 42,414 42,544 42,074
TOTAL EXPENSES 172,364 171,900 171,736 171,871 171,405 171,238 171,370 170,902 170,733 170,863 170,393
OTHER INCOME

Interest Income 97 167 246 1 97 201 310 90 208 327 448

Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL OTHER INCOME | 97 167 246 1 97 201 310 90 208 327 448
PRE TAX INCOME 70,622 70,989 71,153 71,018 71,484 71,651 71,519 71,987 72,156 72,026 72,496
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Annual Profit & Loss Projection 2007-2011

January 2%, 2008

REVENUE | 2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2010 | 2011 | TOTAL
Equipment Sales 20,601 52,700 61,660 37,960 0 172,921
Other Income 21,633 0 0 0 0 21,633
Services | | \ \ \ \
Internet Services 125,464 564,607 1,654,127 2,737,959 2,914,667 7,996,824
Installation & Labor 4,167 13,175 15,415 9,490 0 42,247
Contributions | | | | | |
Unrestricted Contributions 969 0 0 0 0 969
Restricted Contributions 350 0 0 0 0 350
TOTAL REVENUE 173,184 630,482 1,731,202 2,785,409 2,914,667 8,234,944
EXPENSES
VARIABLE EXPENSES
Reimbursed Expenses -2,186 0 0 0 0 -2,186
Hardware Costs 42,432 52,700 61,660 37,960 0 194,752
Installation Costs 15,879 0 1,815 9,490 0 27,184
Internet Services 144,719 40,578 321,083 1,446,469 1,539,824 3,492,674
Total COGS | 200,845’ 93,278 384,558‘ 1,493,919 1,539,824‘ 3,712,424
GROSS PROFIT -27,661| 537,204‘ 1,346,644‘ 1,291,490‘ 1,374,843‘ 4,522,520
FIXED EXPENSES | \ \ \ \
Payroll Expenses 55,384 90,900 134,640 148,104 162,914 591,943
Sub Total-Personnel 55,384 90,900 134,640 148,104 162,914 591,943
Accounting 1,750 1,200 1,200 0 0 4,150
Bad Debt 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bank Service Charges 4,591 31,524 86,560 139,270 145,733 407,679
Dues & Subscriptions 886 0 0 0 0 886
Insurance 3,152 2,160 2,160 2,160 2,160 11,792
Interest Expenses 0 196,998 244,173 221,952 198,476 861,599
Legal Fees 0 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 4,800
Licenses and Permits 719 0 0 0 0 719
Marketing 1,989 0 0 0 0 1,989
Meals and Entertainment 416 0 0 0 0 416
Misc. Expenses 653 0 0 0 0 653
Office Supplies 2,888 2,888 2,888 2,888 2,888 14,440
Postage 405 0 0 0 0 405
Printing & Reproduction 13 0 0 0 0 13
Professional Development 239 600 600 600 600 2,639
Rent 1,240 0 0 0 0 1,240
Telephone 260 0 0 0 0 260
Travel 346 0 0 0 0 346
TOTAL FIXED EXPENSES | 74,931| 327,470 473,421‘ 516,174 513,972‘ 1,905,969
TOTAL EXPENSES | 275,776| 420,748‘ 857,979‘ 2,010,093‘ 2,053,796‘ 5,618,393
OTHER INCOME | -66| 43,483‘ 5,345‘ 2,762 2,762‘ 54,285
PRE TAX INCOME -102,658 253,217 878,567 778,077 863,633 2,670,836
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2007 Cash Flow Statement

January 2%, 2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES | Jan-07|  Feb-07| Mar-07]  Apr-07]  May-07]  Jun-07] Jul-07 | Aug-07 | Sep-07| Oct-07 | Nov-07 | Dec-07
Net Income 1,971 -2,797 -5,435 13,834 -15,542 -11,795 -5,702 -9,827 -21,769 -21,357 -26,539 2,299
Accounts Receivable 124 -80 1,698 -18,312 8,790 9,104 -277 -882 -780 -2,477 1,150 -5,657
Employee Advances -140 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Inventory Asset 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Payable -11,452 1,611 0 0 13,665 6,775 7,404 18,152 19,406 19,936 22,617 4,673
Payroll Liabilities -19 928 1,170 750 1,468 1,634 -877 903 -1,588 1,234 0 0
Sales Tax Payable 13 1 0 1 13 37 175 401 214 185 261 243
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING -9,502 -337 -2,567 -3,727 8,393 5,755 722 8,747 -4,518 -2,478 -2,511 1,558
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Network Infrastructure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Office Equipment 0 0 -485 -467 0 0 -68 -245 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING 0 0 -485 -467 0 0 -68 -245 0 0 0 0
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Opening Bal Net Assets -143 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bank Financing 16,543 -139 0 -264 -3,258 -30 -7,881 -5,000 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING | 16,400| -139| 0 -264| -3,258‘ -30| -7,881 -5,000 0 0| 0‘ 0
NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD | 6,898| -476 -3,052 -4,459| 5,135‘ 5,725| -7,227 3,502 -4,518 —2,478| -2,511‘ 1,558
CASH AT END OF PERIOD 12,968 12,493 9,441 4,982 10,117 15,842 8,615 12,117 7,599 5,121 2,610 4,168
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2008 Cash Flow Projection

January 2%, 2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES | Jan-08|  Feb-08] Mar-08]  Apr-08]  May-08]  Jun-08] Jul-08 | Aug-08 | Sep-08| Oct-08 | Nov-08 | Dec-08
Net Income -1,348 -982 23,198 1,213 11,411 13,988 18,781 24,193 29,806 37,213 45,246 50,498
Accounts Receivable 7,600 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Employee Advances 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Inventory Asset 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Payable 0 0 -102,786 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Payroll Liabilities 1,200 -1,200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sales Tax Payable -1,545 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 5,907 -2,182 -79,588 1,213 11,411 13,988 18,781 24,193 29,806 37,213 45,246 50,498
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Network Infrastructure 0 0| -2,000,000 0 0 -750,000 0 0 -750,000 0 0 -750,000
Office Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING 0 0 -2,000,000 0 0 -750,000 0 0 -750,000 0 0 -750,000
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Opening Bal Net Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bank Financing 0 0| 4,900,000 -30,660 -30,801 -30,942 -31,084 -31,227 -31,371 -31,515 -31,659 -31,805
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING | 0| 0 4,900,000 -30,660| -30,801‘ -30,942| -31,084 -31,227 -31,371 -31,515| -31.659‘ -31,805
NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD | 5,907| -2,182 2,820,412 —29,447| —19,390‘ —766,954| -12,303 -7,034 -751,565 5,698| 13,587‘ -731,307
CASH AT END OF PERIOD 10,075 7,893 2,828,305 2,798,858 2,779,468 2,012,514 2,000,211 1,993,177 1,241,612 1,247,310 1,260,897 529,590
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2009 Cash Flow Projection

January 2%, 2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES | Jan-09|  Feb-09] Mar-09]  Apr-09]  May-09]  Jun-09] Jul-09 | Aug-09 | Sep-09 Oct-09 | Nov-09 | Dec-09
Net Income 56,951 63,093 70,784 78,175 86,168 93,861 101,254 109,249 53,534 57,226 50,109 54,667
Accounts Receivable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Employee Advances 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Inventory Asset 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Payable 0 0 150,000 -50,000 -50,000 -50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
Payroll Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sales Tax Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 56,951 63,093 220,784 28,175 36,168 43,861 101,254 109,249 53,534 57,226 50,109 54,667
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Network Infrastructure 0 0 -750,000 0 0 0 0 -449,356 0 0 0 0
Office Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING 0 0 -750,000 0 0 0 0 -449,356 0 0 0 0
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Opening Bal Net Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bank Financing -31,951 -32,098 -32,245 -32,393 -32,542 -32,691 -32,841 267,008 -33,143 -33,296 -33,449 -133,602
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING | -31,951| -32,098 -32,245 -32,393| -32,542‘ -32,691| -32,841 267,008 -33,143 -33,296| -33.449‘ -133,602
NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD | 25,()00| 30,995 -561,461 -4,218| 3,626‘ 11,170| 68,413 -73,099 20,391 23,930| 16,660‘ -78,935
CASH AT END OF PERIOD 554,590 585,585 24,123 19,906 23,532 34,701 103,115 30,016 50,407 74,337 90,997 12,062
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2010 Cash Flow Projection

January 2%, 2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES | Jan-10|  Feb-10]  Mar-10]  Apr-10]  May-10]  Jun-10] Jul-10 | Aug-10 | Sep-10] Oct-10] Nov-10 | Dec-10
Net Income 50,894 54,707 57,947 60,553 63,414 65,640 67,231 69,077 70,289 70,866 71,699 71,896
Accounts Receivable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Employee Advances 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Inventory Asset 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Payroll Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sales Tax Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 50,894 54,707 57,947 60,553 63,414 65,640 67,231 69,077 70,289 70,866 71,699 71,896
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Network Infrastructure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Office Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Opening Bal Net Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bank Financing -33,756 -33,911 -34,067| -134,224 -34,381 -34,539 -34,697 -134,856 -35,016 -35,177 -35,339 -35,501
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING | -33,756| -33,911 -34,067 -l34,224| -34,381‘ -34,539| -34,697 -134,856 -35,016 -35,177| -35.339‘ -35,501
NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD | 17,138| 20,796 23,880 -73,671| 29,033‘ 31,101| 32,534 -65,779 35,273 35,689| 36,360‘ 36,395
CASH AT END OF PERIOD 29,200 49,996 73,876 205 29,238 60,339 92,873 27,094 62,367 98,056 134,416 170,811
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2011 Cash Flow Projection

January 2%, 2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES | Jan-11|  Feb-11]  Mar-11]  Apr-11|  May-11]  Jun-11] Jul-11 Aug-11] Sep-11] Oct-11] Nov-11 | Dec-11
Net Income 50,894 54,707 57,947 60,553 63,414 65,640 67,231 69,077 70,289 70,866 71,699 71,896
Accounts Receivable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Employee Advances 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Inventory Asset 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Payroll Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sales Tax Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 50,894 54,707 57,947 60,553 63,414 65,640 67,231 69,077 70,289 70,866 71,699 71,896
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Network Infrastructure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Office Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Opening Bal Net Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bank Financing -35,664 -35,828 -35,992 -36,157 -36,323 -36,490 -36,658 -36,826 -36,995 -37,165 -37,335 -37,507
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING | -35,664 -35,828 -35,992| -36,157 -36,323‘ -36,490 -36,658 -36.826‘ -36.995‘ -37,165 -37,335 -37,507
NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD | 15,230 18,879 21,955| 24,396 27,091‘ 29,150 30,573 32,251‘ 33,294‘ 33,701 34,364 34,389
CASH AT END OF PERIOD 27,292 46,171 68,126 92,522 119,613 148,763 179,336 211,587 244,881 278,582 312,946 347,335
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Annual Cash Flow Projection 2007-2011

OPERATING ACTIVITIES | 2006 | 2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2010 | 2011 |TOTAL

Net Income -8674.74  -102,658 253,217 875,071 774,213 774,213 2,574,056
Accounts Receivable -2243.45 -7,600 7,600 0 0 0 0
Employee Advances -3707.51 -140 0 0 0 0 -140
Inventory Asset 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Payable 13243.42 102,786 -102,786 0 0 0 0
Payroll Liabilities 1566.53 5,602 0 0 0 0 5,602
Sales Tax Payable 0 1,545 -1,545 0 0 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 184.25 -464 156,486 875,071 774,213 774,213 2,579,519
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Network Infrastructure 0 0 -4,250,000 -1,199,356 0 0 -5,449,356
Office Equipment 600 -1,265 0 0 0 0 -1,265
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING 600 -1,265 -4,250,000 -1,199,356 0 0 -5,450,621
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Open Bal Net Assets 0 -143 0 0 0 0 -143
Bank Financing 0 -30 4,618,936 -193,243  -615,464  -438,940 3,371,259
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING | 0| -173‘ 4,618,936| -193,243| -615,464‘ -438,940‘ 3,371,116
NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD | 784| -1,902‘ 525,422| -517,528| 158,749‘ 335,273‘ 500,014
CASH AT END OF PERIOD 784 -1,118 524,304 6,776 165,525 500,798 500,798
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END END END END END
ASSETS 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Current Assets

Cash -1,118 524,304 6,776 165,525 500,798

Accounts Receivable 7,600 0 0 0 0

Other Current Assets 140 140 140 140 140
Total Current Assets 6,622 524,444 6,916 165,665 500,938
Fixed Assets | | | |

Network Infrastructure 0 4,250,000 5,449,356 5,449,356 5,449,356

Office Equipment 1,265 1,265 1,265 1,265 1,265
Total Fixed Assets 1,265 4,251,265 5,450,621 5,450,621 5,450,621
TOTAL ASSETS 7,887 4,775,709 5,457,537 5,616,286 5,951,559
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 102,786 0 0 0 0

Payroll Liabilities 5,602 5,602 5,602 5,602 5,602

Bank Debt -30 4,618,906 4,425,663 3,810,199 3,371,259

Sales Tax Payable 1,545 0 0 0 0
Total Current Liabilities 109,904 4,624,509 4,431,266 3,815,802 3,376,862
Long Term Liabilities ] ] | ]

Opening Balance Net Assets -143 -143 -143 -143 -143
Total Long Term Liabilities -143 -143 -143 -143 -143
TOTAL LIABILITIES 109,761 4,624,366 4,431,123 3,815,659 3,376,719
EQUITY |

Retained Earnings 784 -101,874 151,343 1,026,414 1,800,627

Distributions 0 0 0 0 0

Pre-Tax Income (Current Year) -102,658 253,217 875,071 774,213 774,213
TOTAL EQUITY -101,874 151,343 1,026,414 1,800,627 2,574,840
TOTAL LIAB. & EQUITY 7,887 4,775,709 5,457,537 5,616,286 5,951,559
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